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Financial Highlights

2006 2005 Percentage

HK$Million HKS$Million Change

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company 216.8 183.0 +18%
Dividends 86.5 61.8 +40%
Total Equity 3,248.1 3,105.9 +5%
Earnings Per Share $0.35 $0.30 +17%
Dividends Per Share $0.14 $0.10 +40%
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Biography of O

Directors

David Pun CHAN, SB HonLLD

David Pun CHAN, 55, joined the group in
1973, appointed a director of its holding
company in 1975 and Chairman in 1981.
He has more than 25 years’ experience in
construction, property development and
investment businesses. Currently, he is a
member of Council of Lingnan University,
a committee member of The Chinese
General Chamber of Commerce and a
director of The Hong Kong Real Estate
Developers Association. He is the brother
of Ivy Sau Ching Chan, another director of
the Company.

Ivy Sau Ching CHAN, BA

I[vy Sau Ching CHAN, 53, has been a
director of the group’s holding company
since 1981. She is currently a Partner with
Messrs Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo. She advises
on legal matters of the businesses of the
group. She is the sister of David Pun Chan,
another director of the Company.

Joseph Wing Siu CHEUNG, MS

Joseph Wing Siu CHEUNG, 60, appointed
a director of the group’s holding company
in 2004. He is a director of The Garden
Company Limited and its major subsidiaries
(“The Garden Group”) and has over 25
years’ experience in manufacturing, sales
and marketing management in The Garden
Group.

Karl Chi Leung KWOK, BA MBA

Karl Chi Leung KWOK, 57, has been a
director of the group’s holding company
since 1983. He has more than 25 years’
management experience in the banking and
finance businesses. He is Chairman of Wing
On International Holdings Limited, Wing
On Company International Limited, the

irectors and Senior Management’

Board of The Trustees of Chung Chi College
of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
and The Hong Kong — America Center, a
member of University Council and
Executive Committee of the Council of
The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
Council and Executive Committee of the
Council of City University of Hong Kong,
a trust member of The Outward Bound
Trust of Hong Kong Limited, president of
Hong Kong Sailing Federation, vice
president of Sports Federation & Olympic
Committee of Hong Kong, China and a
director of The Hong Kong Safety Institute
Ltd..

William Wai Lim LAM, BBus MBA CPA
CPA(Aust.) CPA(US) FCCA

William Wai Lim LAM, 42, joined the group
in 1996, appointed a director of its holding
company in 2004. He has more than 20
years’ experience in auditing, accounting,
corporate finance and strategic planning.
He is also the Chief Accountant of the

group.

Wing Sau LI, BA DipMS

Wing Sau LI, 53, joined the group in 1994,
appointed a director of its holding company
in 1997. Prior to joining the group, he
worked as project manager of a project
and construction management consultant
company in Canada. He has more than 25
years’ project management experience both
in Hong Kong and Canada. He is also the
Controller — Project and Construction of
the group.

Benedict Cho Hung WOO, BSc

Benedict Cho Hung WOO, 68, appointed a
director of the group’s holding company
in 2000. He is a consultant to Messrs
T.S. Tong & Co. Solicitors.




Senior Management

Head of Construction

Sun Yuen LEE, BSc MASc, 64, the
Construction Manager of the group. He
joined the group in 1991, prior to which
he was construction manager of major listed
property developers. He has more than 25
years’ experience in the construction
industry both in Hong Kong and Singapore.

Head of Sales and Property Management
Ting Wah YUEN, FCCA, 54, the Property
Manager of the group. He joined the group
in 1980 initially as accountant and
subsequently transferred to the Sales and
Property Management division in 1991. Prior
to joining the group, he was an internal
auditor with a listed company. He has more
than 25 years’ experience in commercial
and public accounting, corporate auditing,
property management and property sales.

Head of US Operations

Chi Hung POON, BA MSc MBA, 59, the
Vice President of the US Operations. He
joined the group in 1988, He has more
than 25 years’ experience in property
development, civil engineering and
construction in the United States. He is the
cousin of David Pun Chan and Ivy Sau
Ching Chan, the directors of the Company.

Biography of Directors and Senior Management

Head of Secretarial

Yee Har TAM, FCIS, 55, the Secretarial
Manager of the group. She joined the group
in 1981, prior to which she was a chartered
secretary and legal officer of an
international company. She has more than
25 years’ company secretarial experience.

Head of Information Technology

Wing Ip TANG, MBA, 56, the I T Manager
and also the Senior Manager of Corporate
Affairs of the group. He joined the group
in 1979 initially as accountant and
subsequently transferred to the Information
Technology division in 1982. Prior to joining
the group, he was an internal auditor with
a listed company. He has more than 25
years’ experience in commercial accounting,
corporate auditing and information
technology.

Head of Human Resources

Kam Fung WONG, MBA, 41, the Human
Resources Manager of the group. She joined
the group in 1993, prior to which she was
the assistant personnel manager of an
international hotel group. She has more
human resources

than 15 vyears’

management experience.




Report of the Directors

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2006.

Principal Activities
The principal activity of the company is investment holding. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries include property investment and development, investment holding and property
management. Details are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the group’s performance for the year by business and geographical segments
is set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the group for the year are set out in the consolidated profit and loss account
on page 19.

The directors declared an interim dividend of HK 6 cents per ordinary share, totalling
HK$37.1 million, which was paid on 8th February 2000.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK 8 cents per ordinary

share, totalling HK$49.4 million, to persons registered as shareholders on 6th September
2006.

Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the group and the company during the year are set out in
note 29 to the financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the group are set out in
note 15 to the financial statements.

Financial Summary

A five years financial summary of the group is set out on page 68.

Borrowings

Details of the borrowings of the group are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

Major Properties
Particulars of major properties of the group are set out on pages 66 and 67.

Directors
The directors in office during the year and up to the date of this report are Messrs David
Pun Chan, Joseph Wing Siu Cheung*, Karl Chi Leung Kwok*, William Wai Lim Lam, Wing
Sau Li, Benedict Cho Hung Woo* and Ms Ivy Sau Ching Chan.




Report of the Directors

In accordance with Bye-law 84 of the company’s Bve-laws, Ms Ivy Sau Ching Chan and Mr
Karl Chi Leung Kwok retire from the board by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The company has received from each of its independent non-executive directors a
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The company
is of the view that all independent non-executive directors are independent in accordance
with the terms of the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

None of the directors has a service contract with the company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation.

* independent non-executive directors

Biography of Directors and Senior Management
The biographical details of the directors and senior management are set out on pages 3
and 4.

Directors’ [nterests
At 31st March 2006, the interests of the directors and chief executive in the shares of the
company as recorded in the register maintained under section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) were as follows:

Number of shares

Personal Family Corporate Other
Name interests interests interests interests Total
David Pun Chan 108,816,971 - *61,335,074 - 170,152,045
Ivy Sau Ching Chan 20,132,706 - - - 20,132,706
Karl Chi Leung Kwok 221,212 - - - 221,212
Wing Sau Li 63,000 - - - 63,000

*

Such shares were held through a corporation wholly owned by Mr David Pun Chan.
All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the shares of the company.

Save as disclosed above, no directors, chief executive or their associates had any interest

or short position in the shares of the company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™).

6 During the year, the company did not grant to the directors or chief executive any right to
subscribe for shares of the company.




Report of the Directors

No contracts of significance in relation to the group’s business to which the company or its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

At no time during the year was the company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors of the company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders
At 31st March 2006, the register of substantial shareholders maintained under section 336
of the SFO showed that the company has been notified of the following interest, being 5%
or more in the company’s issued share capital. This interest is in addition to those
disclosed above in respect of the directors and chief executive:

Name Number of shares

Chan Poon Wai Kuen 96,185,380
All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the shares of the company.

Save as disclosed above, the company has not been notified by any other person (other
than a director of the company disclosed above) who has an interest or short position in
the shares of the company which are required to be recorded in the register kept by the
company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at 31st March 2006.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares
The company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the company’s shares during the
year.

Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the company and within the knowledge

of the directors, the company has maintained the prescribed amount of public float during
the year and up to the date of this report as required under the Listing Rules.

Pre-emptive Rights
No pre-emptive rights exist under Bermuda law in refation to the issue of new shares by
the company.

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial

part of the business of the company were entered into or existed during the vear.
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Assets Value

As previously reported in the interim report of the group for the six months ended 30th
September 2005, prior to 1st April 2005, it was the group's policy, in accordance with the
relevant accounting standards applicable at that time, to state the value of its owned and
operated hotel properties at their open market valuations appraised annually and not
depreciated. Upon the adoption by the group of the new and revised accounting standards,
such properties are now stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortisation.

In order to fully reflect the underlying economic values of the group’s hotel properties, the
group considers it appropriate also to present to shareholders as set out below,
supplementary information on the'group’s statement of net assets on the basis that the
group were to continue to state its hotel properties at their open market valuations as at
31st March 2006 in accordance with the accounting standards previously adopted.

2006 2005
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HKS$Million  HK$Million
Non-current assets, including interest in associates 1,838.9 1,867.2
Add: Attributable revaluation surplus relating to
hotel properties* 1,922.1 1,523.6
3,761.0 3,390.8
Current assets 1,827.5 1,757.7
Current liabilities (201.5) (271.1)
Net current assets 1,626.0 1,486.6
Total assets less current liabilities 5,387.0 4,877 .4
Non-current liabilities (216.8) (247.9)
Net assets as if the hotel properties were stated at
open market value 5,170.2 4,629.5
Net assets per ordinary share as if the hotel properties
were stated at open market value HKS$8.37 HK$7.50

* Based on open market valuations as at 31st March 2006.
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Major Suppliers and Customers
For the year ended 31st March 20006, the five largest suppliers and the largest supplier of
the group accounted for approximately 77% and 46% respectively of the group’s total
purchases and the five largest customers and the largest customer of the group accounted
for approximately 32% and 15% respectively of the group’s turnover.

At 31st March 2006, none of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the company’s share capital) had a
beneficial interest in any of the group's five largest suppliers or five largest customers.

Operational Review

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The group’s funding requirements are met with cash on hand, internally generated cash
and, to the exient required, by external floating rate bank borrowings. Other sources of
funds include dividends received from associates.

At 31st March 20006, the group’s borrowings net of cash, was HK$230.4 million as compared
with HK$315.8 million last year. The group’s borrowings were secured by certain investment
properties and other properties held by the group with a total carrying value of HK$1,081.9
million. Approximately 91.2% of the group’s borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and the remaining 8.8% were in United States dollars. The US dollar l[oans are
directly tied in with the business of the group’s US operations, and therefore these loans
are substantially hedged by assets in the same currency.

As at year end, approximately 32.8% of the group’s borrowings were payable within one
year and 67.2% were payable between two to five years.

The gearing ratio, which is calculated as the ratio of the bank borrowings to equity, is
maintained at a low level of 9.8% at 31st March 2006. The gearing ratio was 13.3% last
year.

Committed borrowing facilities available to the group, but not drawn at 31st March 2006,
amounted to HK$452.6 million. Together with the receipts over the next twelve months
from tenants and purchasers of the group’s properties, the liquid funds of the group is
adequate to meet the anticipated working capital requirement in the coming year.

Treasury Policies

The group’s overall treasury and funding policy is that of risk management and control.
The assets and liabilities of the group are denominated either in Hong Kong or United
States dollars. Accordingly, the group has minimal exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation.
However, the group will closely monitor the overall currency and interest rate exposures

and, when considered appropriate, the group will take the necessary actions to ensure that
such exposures are properly hedged. '
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Emolument policy
The emolument policy of the general staff of the group is set up by the management of the
group on the basis of their merits, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors and senior management of the company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to individual duties and market practices.

Human Resources

The group, excluding associates, employs a total of 242 people in Hong Kong and the
United States. Employees’ costs, excluding directors’ emoluments, amounted to HK$47.4
million for the year ended 31st March 2006. Remuneration packages are reviewed annually
with other employee benefits including medical subsidies, a non-contributory provident
fund scheme and a mandatory provident fund scheme.

Contingent Liabilities
The company executed corporate guarantee as part of the securities for general banking
facilities granted to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Corporate Governance
Details of the corporate governance practices of the company are set out on pages 11 to

16.

Connected Transactions
No transactions entered by the group during the year ended 31st March 2006 constituted
connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

Auditors
The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
David P. Chan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22nd June 2000




Gorporate Governance Report

11

(B)

Ceorporate Governance Practices

During the year ended 31st March 2006, all those principles as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the “CG Code”)
which became applicable to the company in respect of the year under review were
applied by the company, and the relevant code provisions in the CG Code were met by
the company, with the exception of certain deviations to be discussed below. The
application of the relevant principles, and the reasons for the abovementioned deviations
from the CG code provisions, are stated in the following sections.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. All directors have confirmed, following enquiry by the company, that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

Board of Directors

(i) Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’
attendance
The company’s board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive directors. The board comprises Mr
David Pun Chan (Chairman), Mr William Wai. Lim Lam and Mr Wing Sau Li as
executive directors, Ms Ivy Sau Ching Chan as non-executive director and Mr
Joseph Wing Siu Cheung, Mr Karl Chi Leung Kwok and Mr Benedict Cho Hung
Woo as independent non-executive directors. Ms Ivy Sau Ching Chan is the sister
of Mr David Pun Chan.

Four board meetings were held during the financial year ended 31st March 20006.
The attendance of the directors are set out below:

Directors Attendance at Meetings

David Pun Chan, Chairman
Ivy Sau Ching Chan

Joseph Wing Siu Cheung
Karl Chi Leung Kwok
William Wai Lim Lam

Wing Sau Li

Benedict Cho Hung Woo

[N N N\ S I \S T SN N

Each director of the company has been appointed on the strength of his/her
calibre, experience and stature, and his/her potential to contribute to the proper
guidance of the group and its business. Apart from formal meetings, matters
requiring board approval were arranged by means of circulation of written
resolutions.
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Operation of the Board

The company is headed by an effective board which takes decisions objectively
in the interests of the company. The company’s management has closely monitored
changes to regulations that affect its corporate affairs and businesses, and changes
to accounting standards, and adopted an appropriate reporting format in its
interim report, annual report and other related documents to present a balanced,
clear and comprehensive assessment of the group’s performance, position and
prospects. Where these changes are pertinent to the company or directors’
disclosure obligations, the directors are either briefed during board meetings or
issued with regular updates and materials to keep them abreast of their
responsibilities and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
group. Newly appointed directors receive briefings and materials on their legal
and other responsibilities as a director and the role of the board. The company
has also provided appropriate information in a timely manner to the directors to
enable them to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as directors of the company.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the board and the management.
The respective functions of the board and management of the company have
been formalized and set out in writing which was approved by the board in June
2005. Decisions on important matters are specifically reserved to the board while
decisions on the group’s general operations are delegated to the management.
Important matters include those affecting the group's strategic policies, major
investment and funding decisions and major commitments relating to the group’s
operations.

The company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal actions
against its directors and officers. The board reviews the extent of this insurance
annually.

Re-election of Directors

The board has proposed amendments to the company’s Bye-law 84(2) (as stated
in the Special Resolution) at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting in order to
achieve compliance with code provision A.4.2, such that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term (save for any chairman or managing director
under the company’s Private Act which was enacted in Bermuda in 1990), shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to section 4(g) of the Private Act of the company, any chairman or any
managing director of the company shall not be subject to retirement by rotation
under the Bye-laws. In the circumstances, any proposed amendments to the
company’s Bye-laws shall have to take into account the provisions set out in the
Private Act, which the company is subject to.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

The company does not have a separate Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Mr
David Pun Chan currently holds both positions. The board considers that the combination
of the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer can promote the efficient formulation
and implementation of the company’s strategies to grasp business opportunities efficiently
and promptly. Such arrangement, which has been adopted by many local and
international corporations, enables the company to meet the rapidly changing business
environment which needs quicker decision making to achieve business efficiency.

Non-executive Directors
Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Non-éxecutive directors of the company are not appointed for a specific term. However,
they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the company in accordance with the company’s Bye-laws.

Remuneration of Directors

The company has set up a Remuneration Committee consisting of a non-executive
director and two other independent non-executive directors.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the financial year ended 31st
March 2006. Attendance of the Members is set out below:

Members Attendance at Meeting
Karl Chi Leung Kwok, Chairman of the Committee 1
Ivy Sau Ching Chan 1
Benedict Cho Hung Woo 1
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code. Given below are the main duties of the Remuneration
Committee:

(a) to consider the company’s policy and structure of all remuneration of directors

and senior management;

(b) to determine the specific remuneration packages of all executive directors and
senior management,

{(c)  to review performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the board from time to time;

(d) to review the compensation payable to executive directors and senior management
in connection with any loss or termination of their office or appointment; and

(e) to review compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of directors
for misconduct.

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the financial year ended 31st
March 2006 is summarized below:

(a) review of the company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of directors
and senior management;

(b) consideration of the emoluments for all directors and senior management; and
(c) review of the level of fees for directors.

The basis of determining the emoluments payable to its directors and senior management
by the company is by reference to individual duties and market practices. The basis of
determining the directors’ fees (2005: HK$80,000 per annum for each director) is by
reference to the level of fees of similar nature normally paid by a listed company in
Hong Kong to its directors. The directors’ fees are subject to approval from time to
time by shareholders at annual general meetings of the company.
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(G)

Nomination of Directors
The company does not have a nomination committee as the role and function of such a
committee are performed by the board.

The board is responsible for the formulation of nomination policies, making
recommendations to shareholders on directors standing for re-election, providing
sufficient biographical details of directors to enable shareholders to make an informed
decision on the re-election, and where necessary, nominating appropriateé persons to
fill casual vacancies or as additions to the board. The Chairman from time to time
reviews the composition of the board with particular regard to ensuring that there is an
appropriate number of directors on the board independent of management. He also
identifies and nominates qualified individuals for appointment as new directors of the
company. New directors of the company will be appointed by the board. The board
will take into consideration criteria such as expertise, experience, integrity and
commitment when considering new director appointments. Every new director is subject
to retirement from the board at the annual general meeting of the company immediately
following his or her appointment and may stand for re-election at the annual general
meeting. During the year, no new members have been appointed to the board.

Auditors” Remuneration

The fees in relation to the audit and other services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
the external auditors of the company, amounted to HK$1.1 million and HK$0.1 million
respectively.

Audit Committee
The company has set up an Audit Committee consisting of a non-executive director

and three other independent non-executive directors.

Two Audit Committee meetings were held during the financial year ended 31st March
2006. Attendance of the Members is set out below:

Members Attendance at Meetings

Karl Chi Leung Kwok, Chairman of the Committee
Ivy Sau Ching Chan

Joseph Wing Siu Cheung

Benedict Cho Hung Woo

| SR NC I AT O]

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are aligned with the code provisions set out
in the CG Code. Given below are the main duties of the Audit Committee:

(a) to consider the appointment of the external auditors and any questions of
resignation or dismissal;
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(J)

(b) to discuss with the external auditors before the audit commences, the nature and
scope of the audit;

(c)  to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission to the
board, focusing particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i)  major judgmental areas;

(ii)  significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumption;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with stock exchange and legal requirements;

(d) to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any matters the
external auditors may wish to discuss; and

(&) to review the audit program, and ensure co-ordination with external auditors, of
the internal audit function.

The work performed by the Audit Committee for the financial year ended 31st March
2006 is summarized below:

(a) review of the half-year and annual financial statements before submission to the
board,

(b) review of the internal audit findings and internal audit plan;
(c)  review of the external auditors’ audit plan; and
(d) making recommendation to the board on the re-appointment of external auditors.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial vear which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31st
March 20006, the directors have ensured the selection of suitable accounting policies
and consistent application thereof, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, stated the reasons for any significant departures from applicable accounting
standards in Hong Kong and ensured the going concern basis of presentation has been
applied.
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Financial Results Property Development

I am pleased to report that the audited
group profit attributable to the equity
holders of the company for the year ended
31st March 2006 amounted to HK$216.8
million, as compared with the restated profit
of HK$183.0 million last year, representing
an increase of 18%. The improvement in
earnings is mainly due to the improvements
of the property market and the hotel
industry in Hong Kong.

An interim dividend of HK 6 cents per
share was paid on 8th February 2006. The
board has recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HK 8 cents per share to
persons registered as shareholders on 6th
September 2006. Subject to the approval
of shareholders at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, the final dividend will be
payable on 13th September 2006 and the
total dividend for the year will be HK 14
cents per share representing 40% increase
over last year.

Construction work at Avanzado Technology
Park in California has been completed. All
units have been pre-sold. Profits from this
development has been recorded in the
second half of the financial year.

The luxury residential project at Chung
Hom Kok has been completed and we are
making steady progress in the sale of this
development.

Foundation work at the luxury residential
project at Plunkett’s Road on the Peak is
near completion and superstructure work
will commence shortly. When the project
is completed, it will be one of the most
luxurious here in Hong Kong.

Hotel

There have been two new 5-star hotels
completed recently. However, a big 5-star
hotel in Kowloon is being demolished. As
a result, the supply of 5-star hotel rooms
will result in negative growth. Therefore,
the Sheraton-Hong Kong Hotel, in which
your group has 35% interest, will continue
to perform well in the next few years due
to strong demand and lack of new supply.
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Prospects

There has been a gradual increase in
interest rates over the past twelve months,
and it has been predicted that interest rates
will rise further, though at a more gradual
pace. As a result of the rise in interest
rates, mass residential will be most affected.
However, the luxury residential and office
markets will continue to do well due to
shortage of new supplies.

The three sectors which your group has
concentrated on are luxury residential,
office properties and S-star hotel are all
predicted to perform well over the next
few years due to limited supplies and
consistent strong demand.

Finally, I would like to thank all staff for
their loyal support and hard work.

David P. Chan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22nd June 2006
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Note 2006 2005

(As restated)

HKS$Million HK$Miilion

Turnover 5 267.4 310.2
Cost of property sales (87.2) (125.2)
Property expenses (55.7) (57.6)
Gross profit 124.5 127.4
Other income 6] 1.8 0.9
Administrative expenses (38.5) (38.2)
Write-back of provision against properties for sale 42.1 15.5
Write-back of impairment loss on leasehold land 17 24.8 31.0
Provision for investment securities - 7.0)
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 21 (5.5) -
Fair value gains/(losses) on investment properties 1.5 (4.4)
Operating profit 7 150.7 125.2
Finance costs 10 (5.3) 1.8
Share of results of associates 83.6 68.1
Profit before income tax 229.0 191.5
Income tax expense 11 (12.2) (8.5)
Profit attributable to equity holders of the company 12 216.8 183.0
Dividends 13 86.5 61.8
14 $0.35 $0.30

Earnings per share (Basic and Diluted)
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Note 2006 2005
(As restated)
HKS$Million HK3$Million
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 15 2.3 2.0
Investment properties 16 153.6 1521
Leasehold land 17 1,499.3 1,526.4
Associates 19 67.8 79.9
Investment securities 20 - 67.2
Available-for-sale financial assets 21 82.6 -
Deferred income tax assets 27 14.1 14.7
Mortgage loans receivable 22 19.2 24.9
1,838.9 1,867.2
Current assets
Properties for sale 23 1,505.9 1,469.6
Properties under development 156.6 150.3
Mortgage loans receivable 22 0.3 0.3
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 24 71.8 30.0
Amount due from an associate 19 6.3 10.0
Current income tax assets 0.1 -
Bank balances and cash 86.5 97.5
1,827.5 1,757.7
Current liabilities
Creditors, deposits and accruals 25 89.7 94.2
Borrowings 26 104.0 168.8
Current income tax liabilities 7.8 8.1
201.5 2711
Net current assets 1,626.0 1,486.6
Total assets less current liabilities 3,464.9 3,353.8
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 26 212.9 2445
Deferred income tax liabilities 27 3.9 3.4
216.8 247.9
Net assets 3,248.1 3,105.9
Equity
Share capital 28 61.7 61.7
Reserves 29 3,137.0 3,007.1
Proposed final dividend 29 49.4 37.1
Total equity 3,248.1 3,105.9

Approved by the Board of Directors on 22nd June 2006

David P. Chan
Wing Sau Li
Directors
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Note 2006 2005
(As restated)
HK$Million HK$Million
Non-current assets
Subsidiaries 18 2,349.2 2,349.2
Current assets
Amount due from a subsidiary 18 547.6 546.0
Bank balances and cash 2.0 1.9
549.6 547.9
Current liabilities
Creditors, deposits and accruals 25 3.3 2.8
Net current assets 546.3 545.1
Net assets 2,895.5 2,894.3
Equity
Share Capital 28 61.7 61.7
Reserves 29 2,784.4 2,795.5
Proposed final dividend 29 49.4 37.1
Total equity 2,895.5 2,894.3

Approved by the Board of Directors on 22nd June 2006

David P. Chan
Wing Sau Li
Directors
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Note 2006 2005
(As restated)
HKS$Million HK$Million

Total equity at the beginning of the year,

as previously reported 4,844.5 4,496.4
Effect of the adoption of HKAS 17 (213.8) (190.1)
Effect of the adoption of HKAS-Int 21 (1.2) 2.0)
Effect of the adoption of HK-Int 2 (1,523.6) (1,338.1)
Total equity at the beginning of the year, as restated 3,105.9 2,966.2
Exchange differences 29 0.4) 0.1
Profit attributable to equity holders of the company 29 216.8 183.0
Dividends 29 (74.2) (43.2)
Total equity at the end of the year 3,248.1 31059




Consolidated Gash Flow Statement
(For the year ended 31st March 2006)

Note 2006 2005
HKS$Million HK$Million
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 35 102.6 (172.5)
Interest paid (16.49) (5.2)
Hong Kong profits tax paid (10.3) 3.9
Overseas tax paid (1.2) -
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 74.7 (181.6)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1.0) (1.9
Interest received 1.8 0.9
Dividends received from associates 95.7 90.6
Investments in investment securities - (18.4)
Investments in available-for-sale financial assets (20.9) -
Decrease/(increase) in mortgage loans receivable 5.7 (1.6)
Repayment of amount due from an associate 3.7 403
Net cash from investing activities 85.0 110.4
Cash flows from financing activities
New borrowings - 258.4
Repayments of borrowings (96.4) (103.9)
Dividends paid (74.2) (43.2)
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (170.6) ' 111.3
Net (decrease)/increase in bank balances and cash (10.9) 40.1
Bank balances and cash at the beginning of the year 97.5 57.5
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 0.1 0.D
Bank balances and cash at the end of the year 86.5 97.5
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General Information

Tai Cheung Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.

The company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Principal Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated

financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to

all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

@

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs™) and Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) (collectively “HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA™). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and investment properties, which

are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements,

are disclosed in note 4.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies {continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies

In the year ended 31st March 2006, the group adopted the new/revised standards

and interpretations of HKFRS below, which are relevant to its operations. The

prior year comparatives have been amended as required, in accordance with the

relevant requirements.

HKAS
HKAS
HKAS
HKAS

HKAS
HEKAS
HKAS
HKAS
HKAS
HKAS
HKAS
HKAS
HKAS
HKAS
HKAS
HKAS
HKAS
HKAS
HKAS
HKAS

HKAS-Int 15
HKAS-Int 21

D~ o=

27
28
32
33
36
37
39
40

HK-Int 2

Presentation of Financial Statements

Inventories

Cash Flow Statements

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leases

Revenue

Employee Benefits

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates

Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

Earnings per Share

Impairment of Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Investment Property

Operating Leases — Incentives

Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets

The Appropriate Policies for Hotel Properties

The adoption of new/revised HKASs 1, 2, 7, 8, 10, 16, 18, 19, 21, 23, 24, 27, 28,
33, 36, 37 and HKAS-Int 15 did not result in substantial changes to the group’s
accounting policies, except that HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of share of

net after-tax results of associates and other disclosures.
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2.

Principal Accounting Policies {continued)

(b)

Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

The major changes of the group’s principal accounting policies as a result of the

adoption of the new/revised HKFRS are summarised below.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Leasebold land

The adoption of the revised HKAS 17 “Leases” has resulted in a change in
the accounting policy relating to the reclassification of leasehold land from
properties for sale and properties under development to operating leases.
The up-front prepayments made for the leasehold land are expensed in the
profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
or where there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in the profit and
loss account.

In prior years, the leasehold land was accounted for at the lower of cost
and estimated net realisable value.

Investment properties

The adoption of the revised HKAS 40 “Investment Property” has resulted in
a change in the accounting policy whereby changes in fair values are
recorded in the profit and loss account.

In prior years, increases in fair value were credited to the investment
properties valuation reserve; decreases in fair value were first set off against
increases on earlier valuations on a portfolio basis and thereafter were
charged to the profit and loss account. Any subsequent increase was credited
to the profit and loss account to the extent of the amount previously
charged.

Deferred income tax

The adoption of the revised HKAS Interpretation (“HKAS-Int”) 21 “Income
Taxes-Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets” has resulted in 2
change in the accounting policy relating to the measurement of deferred
income tax arising from the revaluation of investment properties. Such
deferred income tax is measured on the basis of tax consequences that
would follow from recovery of the carrying amount of the investment

properties through use and is calculated at the profits tax rate.

In prior years, the carrying amount of the investment properties was assumed
to be recovered through sale for the purpose of calculating deferred income
tax. As a result, no provision for deferred income tax on revaluation of
investment properties in Hong Kong was made as the tax rate applicable
on sale of investment properties in Hong Kong is nil.
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Principal Accounting Policies {continued)

(b)

Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(iv)

(v

Hotel property

The adoption of HK Interpretation (“HK-Int”) 2 “The Appropriate Policies
for Hotel Properties” has resulted in a change in the accounting policy
whereby an owner-operated hotel property is accounted for as property,
plant and equipment. The depreciable amount of the hotel building is
depreciated over its remaining useful economic life and the carrying amount
of the leasehold land is amortised over the remaining term of the lease.

In prior years, the hotel property held by the associates was accounted for
as an investment property. No depreciation or amortisation was required.

Financial instruments

The adoption of HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation” and HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” has resulted in a change in accounting policy for recognition,
measurement and disclosure of financial instruments. In accordance with
the requirements of HKASs 32 and 39, the group has reclassified its
investment securities as available-for-sale financial assets. Available-for-sale
financial assets are stated at fair value and any changes in fair values are
recognised in equity. When there is cumulative loss which is considered to
be impairment in nature, the amount is charged to the profit and loss
account.

In prior years, investment securities were stated at cost less provision.

All changes in the accounting policies have been made in accordance with

transition provisions in the respective standards, which require retrospective
application other than HKAS 39.
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2.

Principal Accounting Policies {continued)

(b)

Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

The following is a summary of the effect of adopting the new/revised HKFRS on

the consolidated profit and loss account for the years ended 31st March 2005 and

2006.
Increase/(decrease)
Effect of adopting
HKAS 17 HKAS 40 HKAS-Int 21 HK-Int 2 HKAS 39 Total
HKSMillion HKS$Million HKSMillion HKS$Million HKS$Million HKS$Million
For the year ended
31st March 2006
Property expenses 29.9 - - - - 29.9
Cost of property sales (2.0) - - - - 2.0)
Fair value gains on
invesiment properties - 15 - - - 15
Income tax expense - - 0.2 - - 0.2
Profit attributable to equity
holders of the company 27.9) 15 0.2) - - {26.6)
Earnings per share
(HK cent) (4.5) 0.2 - - - (4.3)
For the year ended
31st March 2003
Property expenses 27.6 - - - - 276
Cost of property sales (39) - - - - 39
Fair value losses on
investment properties - {4 - - - 4.4
Income tax expense - - 0.8) - - 08)
Profit attributable to equity
holders of the company (3.7) (44) 08 - - (273)
Earnings per share
(HK cent) (38) 7) 01 - - (4.4)
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2.

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)
The following is a summary of the effect of adopting the new/revised HKFRS on
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March 2005 and 2006,

Increase/(decrease)

Effect of adopting
HKAS 17 HKAS 40  HKAS-Int 21 HK-Int 2 HKAS 39 Total
HKS$Million ~ HKSMillion ~ HKSMillion ~ HKS$Million ~ HKSMillion  HKSMillion

As at 31st March 2006

Leasehold land 1,499.3 - - - - 1,499.3
Associates - - - (1,922.1) - (1,922.1)
Investment securities ‘ - - - - (82,6) (82.6)
Available-for-sale financial assets - - - - 82.6 82.6
Properties for sale (1,485.2) - - - - (1,485.2)
Properties under development (245.0) - - - - (245.0)
Deferred income tax liabilities - - 1.4 - - 1.4
Net assets (230.9) - (1.4 (1,922.1) - (2,154.4)
Retained profits (230.9) 8.3 (1.4 - - (224.0)
Other reserves - (8.3) - (1,922.1) - {1,930.4)
Total equity (230.9) - (1.4 (1,922.1) - (2,154.4)
As at 31st March 2003

Leasehold land 1526.4 - - - - 1,526.4
Associates - - - (1,523.9) - (1,523.6)
Investment securities - - - - 67.2) (67.2)
Available-for-sale financial assets - - - - 67.2 67.2
Properties for sale (1467.2) - - - - (1487.2)
Properties under development (233.0) - - - - (253.0)
Deferred income tax liabilities - - 1.2 - - 1.2
Net assets (213.8) - (1.2) (1,523.0) - (1,738.6)
Retained profits (213.8) 68 1.2) - - (2082)
Other reserves - (6.8) - (1523.6) - (1,530.4)

Total equity 213.8) - {1.2) (1523.6) - (1,738.6)
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2.

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

)

(D

Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Published Standards that
are not yet effective

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards
have been published and are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1st January 2006 or later periods but which the group has not early adopted.
The group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of these new
standards, amendments and interpretations but is not yet in a position to quantify
the impact of these new standards, amendments and interpretations on its results
of operations and financial position.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31st March 2006 and the group's
share of results of its associates and the relevant share of their post-acquisition
reserves. The financial statements of the associates used for this purpose cover a
year ended not more than three months before the company’s year end. Where a
significant event occurs between the associates’ year end and that of the group,
adjustments are made in the consolidated financial statements for the effect of
the event.

(i) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has the power to control
the financial and operating policies. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred.

In the company’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted by the company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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Principal Accounting Policies {continued)

(d

(e)

Consolidation (continued)

(ii)  Associates
Associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence
but not control. Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

The group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is
recognised in the profit and loss account, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
at an annual rate of 20% to write off their cost less accumulated impairment
losses over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed
in the profit and loss account during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount
(note 2(h)).
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2,

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

®

(®)

Investment Properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect of which
construction work and development have been completed and which are held
for long term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases and buildings
held under finance leases, and is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair value is
based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If this information is not
available, the group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on
less active markets or discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are
reviewed annually by external valuers.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the profit and loss account during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Properties under Development and for Sale

Properties under development are investments in freehold land and buildings on
which construction work and development have not been completed. Properties
under development are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Cost
comprises construction costs and amounts capitalised in respect of amortisation
of leasehold land and borrowing costs incurred during the construction period
and up to the date of completion of construction. On completion, the properties
are reclassified to properties for sale at the then carrying amount.

Properties for sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less selling expenses.
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Principal Accounting Policies {continued)

(h)

(

)

Impairment of Assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’'s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units).

Financial Assets
From 1st April 2004 to 31st March 2005, the group classified its investments in
securities, other than subsidiaries and associates, as investment securities.

Investment securities were stated at cost less any provision.

The carrying amounts of individual investments were reviewed at each balance
sheet date to assess whether the fair values have declined below the carrying
amounts. When a decline other than temporary occurred, the carrying amount of
such securities was reduced to their fair value. The provision was recognised as
an expense in the profit and loss account.

From 1st April 2005 onwards, the group classifies its investments in securities as
available-for-sale financial assets. Available-for-sale financial assets are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs and are subsequently carried at fair
value. Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
in equity.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments are recognised in the profit and loss account.

The group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of
equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered an indication that the
securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the profit and
loss account — is removed from equity and recognised in the profit and loss
account. Such impairment losses are not reversed through the profit and loss
account where there is subsequent increase in the fair value of the securities.
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2.

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

(3]

&)

@

(m)

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the

profit and loss account.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the profit and loss account over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods and services, net of
discounts and after eliminating sales within the group. Revenue is recognised as

follows:

(i) Sales of properties

Revenue on sales of properties is recognised when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership,
nor effective control over the properties sold. The group considers that the significant
risks and rewards of ownership are transferred when the buildings or the portions
thereof contracted for sale are completed and the relevant occupation permits have
been issued by the authorities.
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2.

Principal Accounting Policies {continued)

{(m) Revenue Recognition (continued)

n)

(o)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Rental income
Rental income from letting the group’s portfolio of investment properties and other
properties is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the group’s right to receive payment is
established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Property management fee
Property management fee is recognised when the services are rendered.

Operating Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by

the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of

any incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the profit and loss accourt on a

straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Employee Benefits

(i)

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

Provident fund scheme

For the non-contributory defined contribution provident fund scheme, regular
monthly contributions payable by the group at the rate specified in the trust deed
are expensed as incurred. Contributions to the scheme by the group are calculated
as a percentage of employee’s basic salaries. Where there are employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by
the group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the group in funds under the control of a
professional trustee and are managed by an independent fund manager.

For the mandatory provident fund scheme, the group’s contributions are at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income as defined in the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance up to a maximum of HK$1,000 per employee per month,
and are expensed as incurred.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

(p)

Foreign Currency Translation

(i)

(i1)

(ii1)

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK dollars, which is the company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit
and loss account.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified as available-for-
sale are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each profit and loss account are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate
component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investment in foreign operations and of borrowings are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in equity are recognised in the profit and loss account
as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

(@

)

(s

()

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use. Other borrowing costs are expensed.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or
the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so
that outflow is possible, they will then be recognised as a provision.

Segment Reporting
A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing
products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from

those of other business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in providing

products or services within a particular economic environment that are subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of segments operating in other
economic environments.

In accordance with the group’s internal financial reporting the group has
determined that business segments be presented as the primary reporting format
and geographical as the secondary reporting format.

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses. Segment assets consist primarily
of property, plant and equipment, investment properties, leasehold land, properties
for sale, properties under development, available-for-sale financial assets,
investment securities, receivables and operating cash excluding taxation. Segment
liabilities comprise operating liabilities excluding taxation. Capital expenditure
comprises additions to property, plant and equipment.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, turnover, operating results, total
assets and capital expenditure are based on the country in which the relevant
assets are located.

Dividend Distribution

Dividend distribution to the company’s shareholders is recognised as liability in
the group’s financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved
by the company’s shareholders.
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3.

Financiai Risk Management

(a)

Financial risk factors

The group’s activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks: foreign exchange

risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest-rate risk. The group’s overall

risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets

and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the group’s financial

performance.

(0

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

Foreign exchange risk

The group operates internationally but is exposed to limited foreign exchange
risk as most debtors and creditors are denominated in HK Dollars and US
Dollars.

The group has not entered into any forward contracts to manage the
exposure to foreign exchange risk. When considered appropriate, the group
will take the necessary actions to ensure that such exposure is properly
hedged.

Credit risk

The group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. It has policies in
place to ensure that sales and leases of properties are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions. The group aims to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

Cash flow interest-rate risk

The group’s interest-rate risk arises from long term borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
The group has not entered into any interest-rate swaps contracts as the
exposure to interest-rate risk is not significant.
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3.

Financial Risk Management {continued)

(b)

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the group is the current bid price, the appropriate
quoted market price for financial liabilities is the current ask price.

The nominal value less impairment provision of debtors and creditors are assumed
to approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the group for similar financial
instruments.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical

experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting

accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The

estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment

to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

discussed below.

(a)

Estimate of net realisable value of properties for sale

Net realisable value of properties for sale is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling properties of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in market condition. Management will reassess
the estimations at each balance sheet date.
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4,

Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions (continued)

(b) Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties is performed in accordance with the
‘Valuation Standards on Valuation of Properties’ published by the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors. The valuation is reviewed annually by qualified valuers by
considering the information from a variety of sources including i) current prices
in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or location,
adjusted to reflect those differences; and ii) recent prices of similar properties in
less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions
since the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices and iii) discounted
cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived
from the terms of any existing lease and other contracts, and (where possible)
from external evidence such as current market rents for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using yield rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

(¢) Deferred income tax
The group’s management determines the amount of deferred income tax assets to
be recognised by estimating the amount of future profit available to urilise the
tax losses in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The estimation is based on
the projected profit in respective jurisdiction that is mainly based on market
conditions existing on the balance sheet date. It could change as a result of the

uncertainties in the market conditions.
Turnover and Segment Information

The principal activity of the company is investment holding. The group is principally engaged in
property investment and development, investment holding and propérty madnagement.

Turnover recognised during the year comprises:

2006 2005
HK$Million HK $Million

Gross proceeds from sales of properties 158.1 206.7

Gross rental income from
~ investment properties 9.1 9.4
— other properties 94.7 88.4
Property management fees 5.5 5.7
267.4 310.2
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5.

Turnover and Segment information {continued)

(a)

Primary reporting format — business segments

As at and for the year ended 31st March 2006

Property
development Property Hotel Investment
and leasing  management operation holding Group
HKS$Million HKS$Million HKS$Million HKS$Million HK$Million

Turnover 261.9 55 - - 2674
Segment results before provision 84.9 2.4 - 14 88.7
Wiite-back of provision against

propeties for sale 42.1 - - - 42,1
Write-back of impairment loss on

leasehold land 248 - - - 248
fmpairment of available-for-sale

financial assets - - - (5.5) (5.5)
Fair value gains on investment

properties L5 - - - 15
Segment results 153.3 2.4 - 4D 151.6
Unallocated costs (0.9
Operating profit 150.7
Finance costs (5.3)
Shate of results of associates 0.6 - 83.0 - 83.6
Profit before income tax 229.0
Income tax expense (12.2)
Profit attributable 10

equity holders of the company 216.8
Segment assets 3,438.4 40,0 - 106.0 3,584.4
Associates 3.0 - 08.2 (34 67.8
Unallocated assets 14.2
Total assets 3,600.4
Segment liabilities 3623 39.5 - 48 406.6
Unallocated liabilities 117
Total liabilities 4183
Capital expenditure 1.0 - - - 1.0
Depreciation 0.7 - - - 0.7
Amortisation 299 - - - 29.9
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5.

Turnover and Segment Information {continued)

(a)

Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)

As at and for the year ended 31st March 2005 (As restated)

Property
development Property Hotel Investment
and leasing management operation holding Group
HK sMillion HK$Million HK $Million HK$Million HK$Million

Turnover 3045 37 - - 3102
Segment results before provision 87.7 27 - 05 90.9
Write-back of provision against

properties for sale 155 - - - 155
Write-back of impairment loss on

leasehold land 310 - - - 310
Provision for investment

securities - - - 7.0 7.0
Fair value losses on investment

properties 49 - - - (4.4)
Segment results 1298 27 - 6.3 1260
Unallocated costs 0.8
Operating profit 1252
Finance costs (18)
Share of results of associates 0.6 - 675 - 68.1
Profit before income tax 1915
Income tax expense 83)
Profit attributable to

equity holders of the company 183.0
Segment assels 3,397.6 370 - 937 35303
Associates 18 - 80.9 28) 799
Unallocated assets 147
Total assets 36249
Segment liabilities 4673 360 - 42 5075
Unallocated liabilities 115
Total liabilities 519.0
Capital expenditure 13 01 - - 14
Depreciation 0.4 - - - 04
Amortisation 276 - - - 276
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Turnover and Segment Information (continued)

(b)

Secondary reporting format — geographical segments
As at and for the year ended 31st March 2006

Operating Capital
Turnover profit  Total assets expenditure
HK$Million  HKS$Million HKS$Million HKS$Million
Hong Kong 211.3 148.8 3,547.3 0.9
United States of America 56.1 1.9 119.1 0.1
267.4 150.7 3,6066.4 1.0
As at and for the year ended 31st March 2005 (As restated)
Operating Capital
Turnover profit Total assets expenditure
HK$Million HK$Million HK$Million HK$Million
Hong Kong 224.9 110.3 3,460.6
United States of America 85.3 14.9 158.3
310.2 125.2 3,624.9 1.4
Other Income
2006 2005
HKS3$Million HK$Million
Interest income 1.8 0.9
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Operating Profit

2006 2005
(As restated)
HKS$Million HK $Million

Operating profit is stated after charging the following:
Amortisation of leasehold land 29.9 27.6
Auditors’ remuneration 1.1 0.9
Depreciation 0.7 0.4
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 0.1
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings 3.0 4.2

Outgoings in respect of

— investment properties 2.8 3.0
— other properties 3.1 3.2

Staff Costs

The amount of staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments as disclosed in note 9) charged to the

consolidated profit and loss account represents:

2006 2005
HK$Million HK $Million

Salaries and allowances 44.6 439

Provident fund contributions less forfeitures (note (a)) 2.8 2.6

Less: Recharge of staff costs to building management funds

(note (b)) (20.9) (20.0)
26.5 26.5

Notes:

(@ No forfeited contributions arising from employees leaving the scheme were utilised to offset contributions during
the year (2005: HK$0.1 million). At the balance sheer date, there was no forfeited contribution (2003: Nil) which
is available to reduce the contributions payable in future years. Contributions payable at the year end was
HKS$0.2 million (2005: HK$0.2 miltion).

() Recharge of staff costs is reimbursed for property management services rendered.
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8. Directors’ and Senior Management’'s Emoluments

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

The remunerations of the directors for the year ended 31st March 2006 are set

out below:

Salaries Provident

and other Discretionary fund
Name of director Fees  emoluments bonuses contributions Total
HKS$Million  HKSMillion  HKSMillion  HK$Million — HK$Million
David Pun Chan 0.16 1.88 0.16 0.19 2.39
William Wai Lim Lam 0.08 0.93 0.08 0.09 1.18
Wing Sau Li 0.08 1.14 0.10 0.11 1.43
Ivy Sau Ching Chan 0.08 - - - 0.08
Joseph Wing Siu Cheung 0.08 - - - 0.08
Karl Chi Leung Kwok 0.08 - - - 0.08
Benedict Cho Hung Woo 0.08 - - - 0.08
0.64 3.95 0.34 0.39 5.32

The remunerations of the directors for the year ended 31st March 2005 are set

out below:

Salaries Provident

and other  Discretionary fund
Name of director Fees emoluments bonuses  contributions Total
HESMillion HKS$Million HKS$Million HK$Million HK$Million
David Pun Chan 0.10 1.82 0.15 0.18 2.25
William Wai Lim Lam 0.03 0.84 0.07 0.08 1.02
Wing Sau Li 0.05 1.08 0.09 0.11 133
Ivy Sau Ching Chan 0.05 - - - 0.05
Joseph Wing Siu Cheung 0.03 - - - 0.03
Karl Chi Leung Kwok 0.05 - - - 0.05
Benedict Cho Hung Woo 0.05 - - - 0.05
0.36 3.74 0.31 0.37 478
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9. Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the group included three (2005: two) directors of the
company, details of whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining
two (2005: three) highest paid employees of the group are as follows:

2006 2005

HKS$Million HEKS$Million

Salaries and other emoluments 2.1 3.2
Discretionary bonuses 0.2 0.2
Provident fund contributions 0.2 0.2
2.5 3.6

The above emoluments are analysed as follows:

Number of employees

2006 2005
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 2 3
10. Finance Costs
2006 2005
HKS$Million HR$Million
Finance costs comprise the following:
Interest on bank borrowings — bank loans and overdrafts
wholly repayable within five years 16.8 5.2
Less: Amount capitalised in properties under development
(note) (11.5) 3.4
5.3 1.8

Note: A capitalisation rate of 5.2% (2005: 1.2%) was used, representing the cost of the borrowings used to finance the

properties under development.
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11.

Income Tax Expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2005: 17.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated

assessable profit for the year at the rates prevailing in the countries in which the group operates.

2006 2005
(As restated)
HKS$Million HK$Million

Current income tax

Hong Kong profits tax 10.9 9.8

Overseas tax 0.2 1.1
Deferred income tax 1.1 (2.4)

12.2 8.5

The taxation on the group’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that

would arise using the tax rate of Hong Kong as follows:

2006 2005

(As restated)

HKS$Million HK$Million

Profit before income tax 229.0 1915
Less: Share of results of associates (83.6) (68.1)
145.4 123.4

Theoretical tax at a tax rate of 17.5% (2005: 17.5%) 25.4 21.6
Effect of different tax rate in other country 0.1 0.6
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 6.2 6.1
Income not subject to tax (0.1) -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (19.9) (19.2)
Tax losses not recognised 0.8 0.2
Other temporary differences (0.3) 0.8
Income tax expense 12.2 8.5
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12,

13.

14.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the company is dealt with in the financial statements
of the company to the extent of HK$75.4 million (2003: HK$40.4 million).

Dividends

2006 2005
- HK$Million HK$Million

Interim, paid, of HK 6 cents (2005: HK 4 cents)
per ordinary share 37.1 24.7

Final, proposed, of HK 8 cents (2005: HK 6 cents)
per ordinary share (note) 49.4 37.1

86.5 61.8

Note: At a meeting held on 22nd June 2006, the directors proposed a final dividend of HK 8 cents per ordinary share,
This proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial statements, but will be reflected
as an appropriation of retained profits for the year ending 31st March 2007.

Earnings Per Share

The calculation of earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of the
company of HK$216.8 million (2005: HK$183.0 million, as restated) and ordinary shares in issue
of 617,531,425 (2005: 617,531,425). There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding
during the year (2005: NiD.
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15.

16.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Group
2006 2005
HKS$Million HK$Million

Cost
At the beginning of the year 35.5 36.0
Additions 1.0 1.4
Disposals (1.0) 1.9
At the end of the year 35.5 355
Accumulated depreciation
At the beginning of the year 33.5 34.8
Charge for the year 0.7 0.4
Disposals (1.0) (1.7D
At the end of the year 33.2 33.5
Net book value -
At the beginning of the year 2.0 1.2
At the end of the year 23 . 2.0
Investment Properties
Group
2006 2005

HKS$Million HKS$Million

At the beginning of the year 152.1 156.5
Fair value gains/(losses) 1.5 (4.4)
At the end of the year 153.6 152.1
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16.

17.

Investment Properties (continued)

Investment properties are held in Hong Kong and their net book values are analysed as follows:

Group
2006 2005
HKS$Million HK$Million
On long term leases 8.6 7.1
On medium term leases 145.0 145.0
153.6 152.1

Investment properties were revalued on 31st March 2006 by CB Richard Ellis Limited, an

independent firm of professional valuers, on an open market value basis.

As at 31st March 2006, investment properties amounting to HK$145.0 million (2005: 145.0 million)

were pledged as security for bank loan facilities granted to the group (note 30).

Leasehold Land

The group’s interests in leasehold land in Hong Kong represent prepaid operating lease

payments and their net book value are analysed as follows:

Group

2006 2005

(As restated)

HK$Million HK$Million

On leases of between 10 to 50 years 1,499.3 1,526.4

2006 2005

HK$Million HK$Million

At the beginning of the year 1,526.4 1,557.9

Write-back of impairment Joss 24.8 31.0

Disposals (14.0) (25.3)
Amortisation

— charged to profit and loss account (29.9) (27.6)

— capitalised in properties under development (8.0) 9.6)

At the end of the year 1,499.3 1,526.4

As at 31st March 2006, leasehold land amounting to HK$526.5 million (2005: HK$638.6
million, as restated) were pledged as security for bank loan facilities granted to the

group (note 30).
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18.

18.

Subsidiaries

Company
2006 2005
HKS$Million HK$Million
Unlisted shares, at cost 2,349.2 2,349.2

The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of subsidiaries are shown in note 37 to the financial statements.

Associates
Group

2006 2005
(As restated)
HKS$Million HK$Million
At the beginning of the year 79.9 102.4

Share of results of associates
— profit before income tax 100.9 82.3
— income tax expense (17.3) (14.2)
Dividends 95.7) (90.6)
At the end of the year 67.8 79.9

The amount due from the associate is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed terms

of repayment.
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19. Associates (continued)

Share of financial results and positions of the associates, all of which are unlisted, are

as follows:

Group
2006 2005
(As restated)
HK$Million HK$Million

Assets
Non-current assets 268.3 326.7
Current assets 66.1 86.9
334.4 413.6
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities 143.6 139.6
Current liabilities 123.0 194.1
266.6 333.7
Net assets 67.8 79.9
Income 262.2 231.2
Expenses (178.6) (163.1)
Share of results 83.6 68.1

Other particulars of associates are shown in note 37 to the financial statements.

52
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20.

21.

22.

23.

Investment Securities

Group
2003
HK$Million
Unlisted equity securities, at cost 123.3
Less: Provision for impairment (56.1)
67.2
The group’s investment securities were denominated in US dollar.
Available-for-sale Financial Assets
Group
2006
HKS$Million
Unlisted equity securities:
At the beginning of the year 67.2
Additions 20.9
Impairment loss (5.5)
At the end of the year 82.6

The group’s available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in US dollar.

Mortgage Loans Receivable

Mortgage loans receivable carry interest at 1% over the Hong Kong dollars prime rate

with interest free periods of 18 months to 3 years from the respective dates when the

mortgage loans were drawn. Repayments will commence after the expiry of the interest

free period and will be by instalments over a period of 10 years to 23 years thereafter.

The carrying amounts of mortgage loans receivable approximate their fair value.

Properties for Sale

As at 31st March 20006, properties for sale amounting to HK$253.8 million (2005:

HK$404.1 million, as restated) were pledged as security for bank loan facilities granted

to the group (note 30).
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24,

25.

Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments

Group

2006 2005
HKS$Million  HK$Million

Debtors, aged
0-3 months 11.8 21.1
Over 3 months 51.1 -
62.9 21.1
Deposits and prepayments 8.9 8.9
71.8 30.0

The carrying amounts of debtors, deposits and prepayments approximate their fair

value,

Credit terms given to customers vary and are generally ranged from 3 to 6 months.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to debtors, as the group has a

large number of customers.

Creditors, Deposits and Accruals

Group Company

2006 2005 2006 2005
HKS$Million HK$Million HKS$Million HK3$Million

Creditors, aged
0-3 months 1.7 5.9 - -
Over 3 months 1.3 3.2 - -
3.0 9.1 - -
Deposits and accruals 86.7 85.1 3.3 2.8
89.7 - 942 3.3 2.8

The carrying amounts of creditors, deposits and accruals approximate their fair value.




Notes to the Financial Statements

55

26.

Borrowings
Group
2006 2005
HKS$Million  HK$Million
Non-current
Bank loans, secured (note 30) 212.9 244.5
Current
Bank loans
— unsecured 50.0 50.0
— secured (note 30) 54.0 118.8
104.0 168.8
Total borrowings 316.9 413.3
The maturity of borrowings is as follows:
2006 2005
HKS$Million  HK$Million
Within one vear 104.0 168.8
In the second year 212.9 4.0
In the third to fifth years - 2405
316.9 413.3

The exposure of the group’s borrowings to interest-rate changes and the contractual

repricing dates are all within 6 months from year end date.
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows:

2006

HKS Us$ HKS$

2005
Uss$

Bank loans 4.9% 7.7% 3.4%

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair value.

5.8%
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26.

27.

Borrowings (continued)

The carrying amounts of borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

Group
2006 2005
HKS$Million  HK$Million
Hong Kong dollar 289.0 348.9
US dollar 27.9 64.4
316.9 413.3

Deferred income Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability
method using a principal tax rate of 17.5% (2005: 17.5%). Movements in the deferred

income tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets

Group
Tax losses
2006 2005
HKS$Million HKSMillion
At the beginning of the year 14.7 12.8
(Charged)/credited to profit and loss account (0.6) 1.9
At the end of the year 14.1 14.7
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27.

28.

Deferred Income Tax Assets/{Liabilities) (continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities

Group
Fair value changes on ~ Accelerated depreciation
investment properties allowances Total
2006 2005 2006 2003 2006 2005
(As restated) (&s restated)
HKS$Million  HKS$Million ~HKS$Million — HKSMillion ~ HK$Million  HKSMillion
At the beginning of the year 12 20 2.2 1.9 3.4 3.9
Charged/(credited) to profit
and loss account 0.2 0.8) 0.3 0.3 0.5 (0.3)
At the end of the vear 14 1.2 25 22 3.9 34

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the extent
that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
The group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$73.8 million (2005:
HK$93.5 million) in respect of losses amounting to HK$360.2 million (2005: HK$470.5
million) that can be carried forward against future taxable income. Included in such
unused tax losses are amounts of HK$294.8 million (2005: HK$403.1 million) which
have no expiry date. The remaining balance will expire at various dates up to and
including 2024.

Share Capital

2006 2005
HKS$Million HK $Million

Authorised:

1,000,000,000 (2005: 1,000,000,000) ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each 100.0 100.0

Issued and fully paid:

617,531,425 (2005: 617,531,425) ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each 61.7 61.7
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29. Reserves

Investment
properties Exchange
valuation Capital  fluctuation Retained  Contributed
reserve reserve reserve profits surplus Total
HK$Million  HKSMilfion  HKSMiftion  HKSMiltion  HKSMiflion  HKS$Million
Group
At Ist April 2003, as previously reported 68 1,523.6 0.6 2.903.8 348.0 4,782.8
Effect of the adoption of HRAS 17 - - - (213.8) - (213.8)
Effect of the adoption of HKAS 40 (6.8) - - 6.8 - -
Effect of the adoption of HKAS-Int 21 - - - 1.2 - 1.2)
Effect of the adoption of HK-Int 2 - (1523.6) - - - (1,523.6)
At Tst April 2003, as restated - - 0.6 2,095.6 3480 3,044.2
Exchange differences - - 0.9 - - (0.4)
Profit for the vear - - - 216.8 - 2168
2005 fina} dividend paid - - - (37.D - 37.1)
2006 interim dividend paid - - - CIAY; - (37.1)
AU 31st March 2006 - - 0.2 1838.2 348.0 3,180.4
Representing:
2006 final dividend proposed 49.4
Reserves at 31st March 2006 3,137.0
3,1860.4
Company
At 1st April 2005 - - - 889.3 1,943.3 2,832.6
Profit for the vear - - - 75.4 - 75.4
2005 final dividend paid - - - (31.1) - (37.1)
2006 interim dividend paid - - - (31.1) - (37.1)
At 31t March 2006 - - - 890.3 1,943.3 2,833.8
Representing:
2006 final dividend proposed 49.4
Reserves at 31st March 2006 2,784.4
2,833.8

The contributed surplus is related to the group’s restructuring in prior vears. The

58 distributable reserves of the company at 31st March 2006 amounted to HK$2,833.8

million (2005: HK$2,832.6 million).
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29. Reserves {continued)

Investment
properties Exchange
valuation Capital  fluctuation Retained  Contributed
reserve reserve reserve profits surplus Total
HKSMillion  HKSMillion  HK$Million  HKSMillion — HK$Million  HK$Million
Group
At Ist April 2004, as previously reported 11.2 1,338.1 0.7 2,736.7 348.0 4,434.7
Effect of the adoption of HKAS 17 - - - (190.1) - (190.1)
Effect of the adoption of HKAS 40 (11.2) - - 112 - -
Effect of the adoption of HKAS-Int 21 - - - 2.0 - (2.0)
Effect of the adoption of HK-Int 2 - (1,338.1) - - - (1,338.1)
At Ist April 2004, as restated - - 07 25558 348.0 2,904.5
Exchange differences - - (0.1) - - 0.1
Profit for the year - - - 183.0 - 183.0
2004 final dividend paid - - - (18.3) - (18.5)
2005 interim dividend paid - - - (4.7 - (24.7)
At 31st March 2005 - - 0.6 2,693.6 348.0 3,044.2
Representing:
2005 final dividend proposed 371
Reserves at 31st March 2005 3,007.1
3,044.2
Company
At Ist April 2004 - - - 892.1 19433 2,835.4
Profit for the year - - - 40.4 - 40.4
2004 final dividend paid - - - (18.3) - (18.5)
2005 interim dividend paid - - - (24.7) - (24.7)
At 31st March 2005 - - - 889.3 19433 2,832.6
Representing:
2005 final dividend proposed 371
Reserves at 31st March 2005 1,795.5

2,832.6
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30.

31.

32.

Pledge of Assets

Certain leasehold land, properties for sale, properties under development and investment
properties of the group with a carrying value of HK$1,081.9 million (2005: HK$1,338.1
million, as restated) have been pledged to banks as security for facilities granted to the
extent of HK$453.9 million (2005: HK$648.3 million) against which HK$266.9 million
(2005: HK$363.3 million) has been utilised at the balance sheet date.

Commitments

Group
2006 2005
HK $Million HK$Million

Capital commitment

~ investment securities - 98.0
— available-for-sale financial assets 95.5 -

Development expenses contracted but not provided
for in respect of properties under development 11.7 20.3
107.2 118.3

Lease Commitments

The group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of properties as follows:

Group
2006 2005
HKS$Million  HK$Million

Not later than one year 3.0 3.0
Later than one year and not later than five years 9.9 11.7
Later than five years - 1.1

12.9 15.8
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33.

34.

Future Operating Lease Receivables

The group had future minimum lease receivables
leases in respect of properties as follows:

under non-cancellable operating

Group
2006 2005
HKS$Million HK$Million

Not later than one year 72.8 67.9
Later than one year and not later than five years 58.6 59.5
131.4 127.4
Contingent Liabilities
Company
2006 2005

HKS$Million HK$Million

Guarantees for credit facilities drawn down by subsidiaries 316.9 413.3
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35.

36.

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated from/(used in) operations:
2006 2005

(As restated)
HKS$Million HK $Million

Profit before income tax 229.0 191.5
Share of results of associates (83.6) (68.1)
Write-back of provision against properties for sale (42.1) (15.5)
Write-back of impairment loss on leasehold land (24.8) (31.0)
Provision for investment securities - 7.0
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 5.5 -
Amortisation of leasehold land 29.9 27.6
Depreciation 0.7 0.4
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 0.1
Fair value (gains)/losses on investment properties (1.5) 4.4
Interest expenses 5.3 1.8
Interest income (1.8) 0.9
Operating profit before working capital changes 116.6 117.3
(Increase)/decrease in leasehold land (2.8) 3.9
Decrease/(increase) in properties for sale 33.3 (73.5)
Decrease/(increase) in properties under development 5.2 (30.5)
(Increase)/decrease in debtors, deposits and prepayments (44.7) 28.1
(Decrease)/increase in creditors, deposits and accruals (5.0) 7.2
Decrease in land premium payable - (225.0)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 102.6 (172.5)

Related Party Transactions

During the year, in addition to the balance with the associate as disclosed in note 19,
the following transactions were carried out with related parties in the normal course of
its business:

Key management compensation

2006 2005
HKS$Million HK$Million

Salaries and other employee benefits 2.5 3.6
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37.

Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates

Issued ordinary Issued
share capital held ordinary
by by share
Subsidiaries Principal Activities Group Company capital
% % HKS$
Tai Cheung (B.V.I.) Company Limited Investment holding 100 100 780
Tai Cheung Properties Limited Investment holding and 100 - 386,633,750
property development
Acmax Enterprises Limited Property development 100 - 2
Acura Enterprises Limited Property development 100 - 2
Alsoic Limited Property development 100 - 8
Antier Investment Company Limited Property development 100 - 300
Avanzado Technology Park, Inc. Property development 100 - 7,999
Buruda Limited Investment holding 100 - 8
+Centrax Limited Property investment 100 - 2
Cosmopolitan Estates Limited Property investment 100 - 1,000,000
Denmore Limited Investment holding 100 - 2
Dumex Limited Investment holding 100 - 3,000,000
Edward Contractors, Inc. Contracting services 100 - 77,240
Enrich Investments Limited Property development 100 - 2
Fliutshire Properties Limited Property development 100 - 2
French Valley Industrial Development, Inc.  Property development 100 - 7,783
Hoi Ka Company Limited Property development 100 - 1,000,000
Jaco Limited Property development 100 - 2
Jumbo Realty Limited Property development 100 - 36,000,000
Junco (Nominees) Limited Nominee company 100 - 200
Karness Limited Investment holding 100 - 5
Kenic Properties Limited Investment holding 100 - 200
Lee May Investments Limited Property development 100 - 60
Maidstone Construction Company Limited Construction 100 - 600,000
South Land Enterprises Limited Property development 100 - 2
Sum Lung [nvestment Company Limited Property development 100 - 10,000,000
Tai Cheung Capital Limited Investment holding 100 - 5,000,000
Tai Cheung Construction Company Limited  Property development 100 - 500,000
Tai Cheung Management Company Limited  Property management 100 - 4,500,000
Tai Cheung Secretaries Limited Corporate secretary 100 - 2
Taico Properties, Inc. Property development 100 - 109,359,743
Talega Technology Park, Inc. Property development 100 - 1,879,559
Tareau International Company Limited Investment holding 100 - 2
Tatrine Development Company Limited Property development 100 - 20
Turnhouse Limited Property development 100 - 2
Walsmith Corporation Limited Investment holding 100 - 2
Wang Yip Construction Company Limited Construction 100 - 5,000,000
Winfield Investments Limited Property development 100 - 2
+Woodmont Investments Limited Property development 100 - 2
Y Lee Enterprises Limited Property development 100 - 14,000,000
Yescott International Limited Investment holding 100 - 2
Zebrine Investments Limited Property development 100 - 20
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37.

Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates (continued)

Issued ordinary
share capital held

by by

Associates Principal Activities Group Company
% %

** Consolidated Hotels Limited Hotel investment 35 -
++ Macfull Limited Property development 20 -
t« Macfull Finance Limited Investment holding 20 -
** Shepherd Investments Limited Investment holding 48 -

All subsidiaries and associates are incorporated in Hong Kong except Avanzado
Technology Park, Inc., Edward Contractors, Inc., French Valley Industrial Development,

Inc., Taico Properties, Inc. and Talega Technology Park, Inc. which are incorporated in
the United States; Alsoic Limited, Buruda Limited and Tai Cheung (B.V.I.) Company
Limited which are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and Karness Limited which

is incorporated in the Cook Islands. The principal country of operation is the same as

the country of incorporation except for Tai Cheung (B.V.I.) Company Limited, Alsoic

Limited, Buruda Limited and Karness Limited which operate internationally.

x

The financial statements of these associates have been audited by firms other than
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Hong Kong. The aggregate net liabilities and profit before income tax of
these associates attributable to the group amounted to HK$339.2 million (2005: HK$359.8 million)
and HKS$0.7 million (2005: HKS$0.5 million) respectively.

Associates with 31st December year ends.

The shares of the subsidiaries have been pledged to banks as security for banking facilities granted
to the subsidiaries.
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Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders of Tai Cheung Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 19 to 64 which have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements
which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair
view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those
financial statements and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test
basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in
the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the circumstances of the company and the group, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations
which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company and of the group as at 31st March 2006 and of the profit and cash flows of the

group for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22nd June 2006
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The directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the properties held by the group will
be of excessive length and therefore the following list contains only those properties which
are material to the group as at 31st March 2006:—

{I)  Properties held for development or sale

Approximate floor

Stage of Expected date Group’s area attributable

Location completion of completion Type ownership to the group

Citimark Completed N/A C 100% 10,476 s.f.
28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Sha Tin

Southmark Completed N/A  C/P 100% 442,664 s.f.
11 Yip Hing St., Aberdeen

Eastern Central Plaza Completed N/A C 100% 156,102 s.f.
3 Yiu Hing Road, Shau Kei Wan

Metropole Square Complered N/A I 100% 429,483 s.f.
2 On Yiu St., Sha Tin

Max Trade Centre Completed N/A I 100% 117,979 s f.
23 Luk Hop St., San Po Kong

Tuen Mun Parklane Square Completed N/A C/P 100% 315,909 s.f.
2 Tuen Hi Road, Tuen Mun

Tuen Mun Central Square Completed N/A - C/P 100% 480,409 s.f.
22 Hoi Wing Road, Tuen Mun

Rural Building Lot No. 1164 Completed N/A R 100% 27,902 s.f.
33 Cape Road,
Chung Hom Kok

Rural Building Lot No. 647 Foundation June 2007 R 100% 23,330 s.f.
3-5 Plunkett's Road, work in
The Peak progress

French Valley Airport Center Planning By phases from  I/C 100% 803,000 s.f.
California, U.S.A. stage December 2007

to December 2011
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{n)

Properties held for investment

Approximate floor

Group’s  area attributable
Location Terms of lease  Type ownership to the group
Cosmopolitan Estate 999 years from 5/8/1871 C 100% 2,161 s.f.
Tai Kok Tsui, Kowloon
Concordia Plaza 30/6/2047 P 100% 99,562 s.f.
Junction of Cheung Wan Road and
Science Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui
Note: [ = Industrial R = Residential C = Commercial P = Public Carpark




Five Years Financial Summary

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
(As restated)
HK$Million  HKSMillion — HK§Million — HKSMillion HKS$Million

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

Turnover 284.2 197.7 182.6 310.2 267.4

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity
holders of the company 76.7 (290.4) 101.4 183.0 216.8

Dividends 247 12.4 30.9 61.8 86.5

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Property, plant and equipment 1.2 1.2 1.2 2.0 23
Investment properties 1773 149.2 156.5 152.1 153.6
Leasehold land - - - 1,526.4 1,499.3
Assaciates 1,367.0 1,187.5 1,490.8 79.9 67.8
Investment securities 47.1 47.1 55.8 67.2 -
Available-for-sale financial assets - - - - 82.6
Deferred income tax assets - 10.8 12.8 14.7 14.1
Mortgage loans receivable 20.1 20.9 233 24.9 19.2
Net current assets 3,016.7 2,785.8 2,812.8 1,486.6 1,626.0
Total assets less current liabilities 4,620.4 4,202.5 4,553.2 3,353.8 3,464.9
Borrowings 57.0 98.1 54.9 2445 212.9
Deferred income tax liabilities 1.1 1.4 1.9 3.4 3.9
58.1 99.5 56.8 2479 216.8

Net assets 4,571.3 4103.0 4.496.4 3,105.9 3,248.1
Share capital 61.7 61.7 017 617 61.7
Reserves 4,497.3 4.0413 4.416.2 3,007.1 3,137.0
Proposed final dividend 12.3 - 18.5 37.1 49.4
Total equity 4,571.3 4,103.0 4,496.4 3,105.9 3,248.1

Performance Statistics

Earnings/(loss) per share 50.12 (50.47) 50.16 $0.30 $0.35
Dividends per share 50.04 $0.02 $0.05 5§0.10 $0.14
Dividend cover 31 N/A 3.3 3.0 2.5
Net assets per share $7.4 $6.6 $7.3 $5.03 $5.26
Current ratio 12.2 14.5 6.4 6.5 9.1
Gearing 5.5% 5.9% 5.8% 13.3% 9.8%
68 Note: Certain comparative figures for the year ended 31st March 2005 have been restated to reflect the adoption

of new/revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. The comparative figures for the three years
ended 31st March 2002, 2003 and 2004 have not been restated as the directors consider that this would
involve undue delay and expense.
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37.

BACHOHER
BEZE &I
B8 A w FEEH 514 27
% %
** Consolidated Hotels Limited HERE 35 -
*. Macfull Limited S35 20 -
*. Macfull Finance Limited HEER 20 -
 EEREFERAFA o i 48 -

L H0 B A ® J ¥ A 7] - BR Avanzado Technology Park, Inc. » Edward Contractors, Inc.
French Valley Industrial Development, Inc. * Taico Properties, Inc. X Talega Technology
Park, Inc.f£ % B #¥ ff 5 Alsoic Limited > Buruda Limited & Tai Cheung (B.V.I.) Company
Limited 7 3% & JE % #f 5B 51 B K Karness Limited7E R mBE S st 2 4b HBR B EF B
it 55 #b > B Tai Cheung (B.V.I.) Company Limited > Alsoic Limited : Buruda Limited &
Karness Limited 2 %8 %5t 25 B B MR 0 4> 2 M A B RS A f 2 L2 &8 M B 7R

HCEE A 4t

XA ZWEEAT 2R B B E S K T 5T SR BT AL d A R AT e A A
WS T 2 BEA R E E R TR R4 B A v %5 359,200,00070 (2 F FAF % 359,800,00070)

R s 700,00070 ( T FE FLE  #E ¥ 500,00000) o
R rBEARZEEEEART-H=F—H-

EE+ ZHBAFUHEBROERARBHTER.
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7. MBLARRBEATER
BECEAEER eET
BEZH I B
B A ) FEEH £ AH JB A
% % 8T
Tai Cheung (B.V.1) Company Limited REHR 100 100 780
KEHERRAH BREBREMERR 100 — 386,633,750
Acmax Enterprises Limited MEER 100 - 2
Acura Enterprises Limited MERR 100 - 2
Alsoic Limited MEER 100 - 8
Antier Investment Company Limited WEHRE 100 - 300
Avanzado Technology Park, Inc. WEHR 100 - 7,999
Buruda Limited BREER 100 - 8
+Centrax Limited MERE 100 - 2
AREEHRALH WERE 100 - 1,000,000
Denmore Limited REEFR 100 - 2
Dumex Limited REBK 100 - 3,000,000
Edward Contractors, Inc. BESORE 100 - 77,240
Enrich Investments Limited MERE 100 - 2
Fliutshire Properties Limited WEER 100 - 2
French Valley Industrial Development, MEHRE 100 - 7,783

Inc.

AFARLE ES 35 100 = 1,000,000
Jaco Limited YEER 100 - 2
R BRERRLF MERR 100 - 36,000,000
Junco (Nominees) Limited REA 100 - 200
Karness Limited BEHR 100 - 8
Kenic Properties Limited HREER 100 - 200
FECLERRALA WERRE 100 - 60
FEREEARAA BE 100 - 600,000
South Land Enterprises Limited MERR 100 - 2
HREEXEERALA MERRE : 100 - 10,000,000
KEERERAR BHEBR 100 - 5,000,000
REBEERAH MEERE 100 - 500,000
KEVEERBERLA MEER 100 - 4,500,000
REREFRAH AT HE 100 - 2
Taico Properties, Inc. MERRE 100 = 109,339,743
Talega Technology Park, Inc. MERE 100 - 1,879,339
Tareau International Company Limited BRELZK 100 - 2
Tatrine Development Company Limited MERRE 100 - 20
Turnhouse Limited WEHRE 100 - 2
Walsmith Corporation Limited REHR 100 - 2
EERERAMAT g 100 =~ 5,000,000
Winfield Investments Limited WEEE 100 - 2
+Woodmont Investments Limited MEERE 100 - 2
63 ENLEERLA EX 100 — 14,000,000
Yescott International Limited REHR 100 - 2

Zebrine Investments Limited WERR 100 - 20
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35.

36.

mERETRER

B S B aa M EREEE A LHERA S (L) Hik:

2006 2005
(ZE])
BHREHEL BEEEL
s BT 12 B4 AT & A 229.0 191.5
LB E AR ES (83.6) (68.1)
T ) 2E 15 > 7 [0 (42.1) (15.5)
ME L EZEE (24.8) (31.0)
HEE SR - 7.0
AR R E A 5.5 -
P 4 2R TE 5 29.9 27.6
g 0.7 0.4
HEYE - HELTHER - 0.1
BEMEARBEZRFA EIR) (1.5) 4.4
F AT 5.3 1.8
FE A (1.8) (0.9
KA BEESEEHAIZEEEAR 116.6 117.3
gL gm B (2.8 3.9
HeEmEELY G 33.3 (73.5)
BRAYER D (M) 5.2 (30.5)
FEWTRRZK - & R TE AT A (Em) wA (44.7) 28.1
FEATBR 3R % & KR EIE () /1 (5.0) 7.2
FE 4t H0AE 3o 0 - (225.0)
HEFEHMEBZEEHRA () 102.6 (172.5)
EFHEALTRS
RERBEWE10EE AT FEUTEREANLLTS:
2006 2005
BEHEHEL HEEEL
e kEAMREEFR 2.5 3.6




MBRRNME

33. AREURELHEE
AEERBEATHEZEHESEHEMAARARENZZEEHERAMT:
M

2006 2005
BWHHET BEHHET

— &K 72.8 67.9
IERER 58.6 59.5
131.4 127.4
34, HAEE
A
2006 2005

BEHHELT HEFEHET

BESEHRERTFHELA 316.9 413.3
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30.

31.

32.

BEEZER

7542 [ )RR T B FE 47 H#E 0 1,081,900,0007T ( U T4 i 151,338,100,00070 B E ) 2
HELH FEYE BRI ERBEY EFRE > BUFRATIZ S 58 2L B % 453,900,000
T ZEERE BH048,300,0000) MEXREBREAD, LRCHHZ ERXFT R
# %266,900,0000C ( ZEZEHE : #HH363,300,00070) e

AIE
£

2006 2005
EBESET HBEEET

N
—EEH - 98.0
— T HEERE 95.5 —
MBRETYECENBRBHEZBERL 11.7 203
107.2 118.3

HAOAE

AEERBATRMZEHELEHEM AR KRR 2 BB EEZKMTF -

£ |
2006 2005
W EET HEEHET

—F RN 3.0 3.0
ZEARFR 9.9 11.7
1R - 1.1

12.9 15.8
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29.

mEE (&)

BE&ME Eizg

tEEEE E4AREZ WE2  GEER  EHA# By

BERFELT AWBET B¥EEL EFHEL BFEET BYBAEAXL
£H
“ZENENA-BEE DHER 11.2 1,338.1 0.7 2,736.7 348.0 4,434.7
FestEpF7% - - - (190.1) - (190.1)
RResHERS40% 11.2) - - 11.2 - -
RivesrefzRsng - - - 2.0 - (2.0)
RRERRES - (1,338.1) - - - (1,338.1)
CZZEEEMA-BER LES - - 0.7 25558 348.0 2,904.5
[y - - 0.0 - - (0.1)
EEFER = - - 183.0 - 183.0
CEEMECRABRE - - - (1853) - (18.5)
CEREECRIHKE - - - 4.7 - (24.7)
TEELEZRZT-HER - - 06 2,695.6 348.0 3,044.2
fe%:
“ETLERRANRE 371
CEETECHET-0ffe 3,007.1

3,044.2

]
“ZENENE-HER - - - 892.1 1,943.3 2,835.4
AEERH - - - 40.4 - 40.4
“EINEERASRE - - - (183) - (18.5)
CEETEDRYHERE - - - 247) - (24.7)
TEEREEZRC=T-0ER - - - 889.3 19433 2,832.6
ft%:
CEERERRARRE 37.1
CEERECZASt BG4 2,795.5

2,832.6
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29.

HiES
Erigd
N2 BEe RERR  ERAR ay
BEEETL EREEr BEEET BREET BBEAL
£H
CEZLENA-H MAER 13236 0.6 2,903.8 348.0 4,782.8
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File No. 82-3528

nEnr IYED Annex A to Letter to the SEC
dated 6" July 2006
Hh L 13 D 3ug : ings Limi
R < of Tai Cheung Holdings Limited
:'Uu R L\Al;r‘“"“

AU:I’ I AHCE

The documents chetked below are being furmshed to the SEC to supplement
information provided with respect to the Company’s request for exemption under Rule
12g3-2, which exemption was established on 23 June 1993 :

Description of Documents

1. Title: 2006 Annual Report, Audited Accounts and Auditors’ Report
Date:  For the year ended 31* March 2006

Entities requmng item : (i) Hong Kong Stock Exchange (pursuant to listing

agreement between Exchange and Company)

(ii) the Bermuda Companies Registry pursuant to the
Tai Cheung Holdings Limited Act 1990
(the “Company’s Private Act™); and

(iii) Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act
(disclosure or distribution to security holders
mandated but filing with a specific body or at
a specific place is not required by the Act)

2. Title: Notification of Annual General Meeting

Date: 6" July 2006

Entities réquiring item : (i) Hong Kong Stock Exchange (pursuant to listing
agreement between Exchange and Company)
(ii) Company’s Bye-Laws; and
(iii) Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act
(disclosure or distribution to security holders
mandated but filing with a specific body or at
a specific place is not required by the Act)

3. Title: Circular sent to Shareholders

Date: 6™ July 2006

Entity requiring item : Hong Kong Stock Exchange (pursuant to listing
agreement between Exchange and Company)
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3A Chater Road, Central, Tai Cheung Holdings Limited
(Incorporated Bermuda with limited liability)

Hong Kong.

Telephone: (852) 2532 2688, 2522 3112

Fax: {852) 2810 4108, 2868 5230, 2877 2487

Qur Ref: GSD/TCHL/4613
6™ July 2006

Securities and Exchange Commission
Division of Corporate Finance

Office of International Corporate Finance
Room 3045 (Stop 3-4), 450 Fifth Street
Washington, DC 20549

US.A.

Dear Sirs,

Re: Tai Cheung Holdings Limited
Rule 12g3-2(b) Exemption
File No. 82-3528

Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)(1)(iii), and on behalf of Tai Cheung Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
enclosed are the documents described on Annex A hereto for your attention.

These documents supplement the information previously provided with respect to the Company’s
request for exemption under Rule 12g3-2(b), which was established on June 23, 1993.

This information is being furnished with the understanding that such information and documents will
not be deemed “filed” with the SEC or otherwise subject to the liabilities of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), and that neither this letter nor the furnishing of
such documents and information shall constitute an admission for any purpose that the Company is
subject to the Exchange Act.

Please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned at (011-852) 2532 2688 in Hong Kong if you have
any questions.

Please acknowledge receipt of this letter and the enclosed materials by date stamping the enclosed
receipt copy of this letter and please return it to Daniel L. Goelzer, Baker & McKenzie, 815
Connecticut Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20006-4078 in the enclosed self-addressed envelope.

Thank you for your kind attention.

Yours faithfully,
TAI CHEUNG HOLDINGS LIMITED

S
Ivy Y. H. Tam

Secretary
Encl.




File No. 82-3528

Annex A to Letter to the SEC
dated 6™ July 2006
of Tai Cheung Holdings Limited

The documents checked below are being furnished to the SEC to supplement
information provided with respect to the Company’s request for exemption under Rule
12g3-2, which exemption was established on 23™ June 1993 :

Description of Documents
1. Title: ZQO6 Annual Report, Audited Accounts and Auditors’ Report

Date:  For the year ended 31% March 2006

Entities requiring item : (i) Hong Kong Stock Exchange (pursuant to listing
| agreement between Exchange and Company)

(i1) the Bermuda Companies Registry pursuant to the
Tai Cheung Holdings Limited Act 1990
(the “Company’s Private Act”); and

(iii) Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act
(disclosure or distribution to security holders
mandated but filing with a specific body or at
a specific place is not required by the Act)

2. Title: Notification of Annual General Meeting

Date: 6% July 2006

Entities requmng item : (i) Hong Kong Stock Exchange (pursuant to listing
agreement between Exchange and Company)
(ii) Company’s Bye-Laws; and
(iii) Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act
(disclosure or distribution to security holders
mandated but filing with a specific body or at
a specific place is not required by the Act)

3. Title: Circular sent to Shareholders

Date: 6™ July 2006

Entity requiring item : Hong Kong Stock Exchange (pursuant to listing
| agreement between Exchange and Company)
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Tai Cheung Holdings Limited *[2I°I,

(INCORPORATED IN BERMUDA WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

,_A_.,,__...,_AzO._._Om,O_u_>zzc>r,mmzmw>_._ _,_\_mm._._z_m,y,__.. U

“ NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN that e Afnial Génstal Mestifig of thé Company Wil b6 held at the' Chater Raom 1 & 1T, Function. Room
Level, The- Ritz-Cariton, Hong Kong, 3 Connaught Road, Central, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 6th September 2006 at 1100 a.m. for the
following purposes:- - ’ N .o : S co . . [ s

.o .T. . 1. . (Stock Code: 88)

1. -To‘raceive and ooqu_amq the Statement of Accounts and the Reports of the actors and Additors for the year ended 31st March 2006.
2. "To declare a final dividend: . ' D e
3. To elect Directors and fix the Directors' fees. - - . C S SN ¢

4: . To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration. . = L o R

As vm,cmomw_ business, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the 8__,05_:@ «mmo_cmo:,..w s:mw: wi _c.m proposed as ,.oaiué resolutions: |
SO S ORDINARY'RESOLUTIONS . - - R Lo

) :._..I>._J. C S, v . L o : S : o . , A . ; ,,

(a) ~'subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the
.= .1, powers of the*Company to repurchase shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company.on The Stock Exchange of Hong
v ", Kong Limited (“Stock, Exchangs”) or.on any other stock exchange on which the securities of the Company:may be listed and
’ "~ recognized by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject to and.
" - inaccordance with all applicable laws and the requirements of the ‘Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
1~ - Exchange-or:of any other stock. exchange as amended from time to time,-be and is hereby generally and unconditionally
. . ' © approved; o ; i i oo h I NI o

(b) the aggregate :oam:m_,mao_._a. of.the shares of the Company which the Directors are, authdrized 8,.,..mn:,ﬂo:_m,_wm,ﬁca:m} to the
.approval in paragraph (a) above aclsm. the Relevant Period (as hereinafter, defined) shall not.exceed 10 per cent. of the
) ] aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company.as at the date of the 'passing of this Resolution, and
L . the said approval shalil-bé limited accordingly; and .. R S ; ! o ! o
BT ()] for the purposes of E_m..Lomo_: ion, “Relevant Period” means the: period frdm the passing of ‘this Resolution until whichever is
' the earlier of:  * PR Lot . . L o = : '

e s

Vo . N ;

S . -the mx_v,:m n of the:period within Which. the next annual @m:mﬂm_,ammzmm of the OovaE is required by the bye-laws of
‘. - . . the.Company orany applicable law to be held; or - : el o o T

" (i)v the conclusion of the néxt-annual-general meeting of the Company; or = .- g N ,

B L . X . S o . . . N }

the date on which the authority set out in this. Resolution is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders

of the Company in general meeting” o e S, : -
R - - o ! . 4 . -t . i I

6. CTHAT:: v UL Y S S

: “.. .7 powers of thié Company to'allot, issue.and deal with any unissued shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant
T VT offers, moamam:ﬂm.m:&ou:o:m (including bonds, warrants and debentures, notes and any securities which carry rights to
" . - . __ subscribe for.or:are.convertible into shares of-the Company)-which would-or. might require the-exercise-of such-power be and-.

" v -ig'hereby generally and.unconditionally approved; - - S 0 E P .

(b)  the approval in paragraph (a) dbove shall duthorize the Directors during the Relevant Period {as hereinafter defihed) to make

~© . or grant offers, agreements and options (including borids, warrants and debéntures, notes and any securities which carry

. . _.rights.to subscribe for or are' convertible into shares. of the Company) which would or might require the exercise of such
L ©. powers after the end of the Relevant Period; , ; - . o : <

(¢), . the aggregate.nominal amount: of share capital ‘allottéd or agreed. conditionally- or unconditionally to.be ‘allotted (whether
. -pursuant to-an option or otherwise) and issued by.the Directors pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above, otherwise
- .than pursuant to (i) a’Rights Issue (as hersinafter defined): (ii} an issue of shares as scrip dividends in accordance with the
-y bye-laws.of the Company from time to time; ot (iii) an issue of shares upon the exercise of rights .of subscription or conversion
] o undar the terms-of any bonds, warrants, debenture; notes and any securities which carry rights to subscribe for or are
X o convertible into-shares of the Company; or (iv) an issue of shares under any. option scheme or similar arrangement for the
: . -time being adoptdd*for the grant~or issue to the grantees as -specified in such wo:m:..o.on similar arrangement of shares or
o " rights to acquire shares of the Company, shall not exceed 20 per:cent. of thesaggregate nominal.amount of the issued share
' capital of the Company as at the,dats-of the passing of this Resolution, and.the m,ma/ approval shall be limited accordingly; and °

(d)  for the purpose of this Resolution, “Relevant Period”, means ‘the ‘period from the passing of-this Resolution until whichever is
the earlier of:— o - ' . ) . . . A

/e

/

v . (&)’ . subject to paragraph (c)'below, the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the




| IMPORTANT

|
If you are in any doubt about this circular, you should consult your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor,
professional accountant or other professional adviser.

If you bave sold all your shares in Tai Cheung Holdings Limited, you should at once hand this circular and the
accompanying form of proxy to the purchaser or to the bank, stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale
was effected for transmission to the purchaser.

This circular includes particulars given tn compliance with the Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy
of the information contained in this circular and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best
of their knowledge and|belief there are no otber material facis not contained herein the omission of which would
make any statement co?ﬂained in this circular misleading.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this circular, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss
bowsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this circular.

*EP*l, TAI CHEUNG HOLDINGS LIMITED

; (Incorporated in Bermuda with limited fiability)
! (Stock Code: 88)

Directors: Registered Office:
David Pun CHAN (Cbazrmcm) Rosebank Centre
Ivy Sau Ching CHAN 14 Bermudiana Road
*Joseph Wing Siu CHEUNG Pembroke
*Karl Chi Leung KWOK Bermuda
William Wai Lim LAM
Wing Sau LI " Head Office:
* Benedict Cho Hung WOO 20th Floor

The Hong Kong Club Building

f 3A Chater Road, Central

i

Hong Kong
* Independent non-exécutive directors ‘? o
‘ ﬂ::,: "l::‘;
Gth July 2006 BT

To the sbarebolde‘;rs
|

Dear Sir/Madam, ‘

i

L
AFALL]

PROPOSALS INVOLVING .
GENERAL MANDATES TO REPURCHASE SHARES AND TO ISSUE SHARES
AMENDMENTS TO THE BYE-LAWS
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
AND
RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

INTRODUCTION

The purpése of this circular is to provide you with information relating to (i) the Ordinary
Resolutions to re;new the general mandates to repurchase shares and to issue shares; (ii) the Special
Resolution to amend the Bye-laws of the Company to be proposed at the forthcoming 2006 Annual
General Meeting; (iii) the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting and (iv) re-election of
directors.




LETTER FROM THE BOARD

GENERAL MANDATE TO REPURCHASE SHARES

A general‘ mandate for repurchase of the Company’s own shares was granted by shareholders
of the Company%at the Company’s annual general meeting held on 1st September 2005. This general
mandate will lapse at the forthcoming 2006 Annual General Meeting unless the authority is renewed
by ordinary resclution at that meeting. At the 2006 Annual General Meeting, an ordinary resolution
will be proposed to grant a general mandate to the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) to
exercise the powers of the Company to repurchase shares of the Company up to a maximum of
61,753,142 sharies, being 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of the
resolution (the “Repurchase Mandate”) on the basis that no further shares are issued or repurchased
prior to the 200§ Annual General Meeting. The Directors have no present intention to repurchase
any shares. Details of the Repurchase Mandate are set out in the ordinary resolution no. 5 in the

|
notice of Annual General Meeting.

Information relating to the Repurchase Mandate as required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules™) is set out in
Appendix 11 hereto.

GENERAL MANDATE TO ISSUE SHARES

It will be 1proposecl at the 2006 Annual General Meeting two ordinary resolutions (i) granting
to the Directorsia general mandate to allot, issue and deal with shares not exceeding 20% of the
issued share capital of the Company at the date of the resolution (the “Issue Mandate”) and (ii)
extending the Issue Mandate by adding to it the number of shares repurchased by the Company
under the Repurchase Mandate. The Issue Mandate will provide the Company the flexibility to
make such issue|when appropriate and beneficial to the Company. The Directors have no immediate
plans to issue new shares. Details of the Issue Mandate and extension of the Issue Mandate are set
out in the ordine%ry resolutions no. 6 and 7 respectively in the notice of Annual General Meeting.

AMENDMENTS TO THE EXISTING BYE-LAWS

Pursuant t:o paragraph E.2.1 of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (“the CG Code”) and in particular, Rule 13.39(3) of the Listing
Rules, the chairman of a meeting and/or directors who, individually or collectively, hold proxies in
respect of share§ representing 5% or more of the total voting rights at a particular meeting shall
demand a poll in certain circumstances where, on a show of hands, a meeting votes in the opposite
manner to that instructed in those proxies. If a poll is required under such circumstances, the
chairman of the imeeting should disclose to the meeting the total number of votes represented by
all proxies held by directors indicating an opposite vote to the votes cast at the meeting on 2 show
of hands. !

|

Pursuant jto paragraph A.4.2 of the CG Code, all directors appointed by the board of
directors to fill 4 casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at rhe first general
meeting after théir appointment and every director, including those appointed for a specific term
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

With effect from 1st March 2006, paragraph 4(3) of Appendix 3 of the Listing Rules has been
amended to provide that a director may be removed by an ordinary resolution in general meeting
instead of a special resolution.

In order to bring the Bye-laws in line with the Listing Rules including the CG Code, the
Directors propose to the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting a special resolution to amend
the existing Bye-laws 63, 83(2), 83(4) and 84(2), details of which are set out in the special
resolution no. 8 in the notice of Annual General Meeting. However, pursuant to section 4(g) of the
Private Act of the Company, any chairman or any managing director of the Company shall not be
subject to retirement by rotation under the Bye-Laws. In the circumstances, the proposed amendments
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LETTE

R FROM THE BOARD

to the Bye-Laws sﬁall have to take in
Company and therefore will only be in
possible.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice of thé 2006 Annual Gen

to account the provisions set out in the Private Act of the
compliance with paragraph A.4.2 of the CG Code insofar as

eral Meeting is set out on pages 8 to 12 of this circular. A

form of proxy for use at the Annual General Meeting is enclosed with this circular. Whether or not

you intend to be present at the mee
return it to the Company’s Registrars

ing you are requested to complete the form of proxy and
in Hong Kong in accordance with the instructions printed

thereon not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding that meeting.

The completibn of a form of proxy and returning it to the Registrars of the Company will not

preclude you from attending and votin:
According to} the Bye-laws of
meeting shall be decided on a show o

the show of hands é)r on the withdraw

(a) by the} chairman of such

!
by at least three Membe
corporation by its duly

(b)

g in person at the meeting.

the Company, a resolution put to the vote of the general
f hands unless (before or on the declaration of the result of
al of any other demand for a poll) a poll is demanded:

meeting; or

rs present in person (or in the case of a Member being a
authorized representative) or by proxy for the time being

enti[le;d to vote at the meeting; or

i

by a Member or Membe
corpor‘ation by its duly a
less than one-tenth of the

meeting; or
I

()

by a Member or Membe
corporation by its duly at
the Cdmpany conferring
aggregate sum has been p
up on all shares conferrin

(D

A demand b:y a person as a p
corporation by its duly authorized repr
Member. ‘

RE-ELECTION OF ’]ITHE RETIRING DIR

Pursuant to Bye-law 84 of the
Kwok will retire by rotation at the 2
eligible, offer themselves for re-elect
Annual General Meeting that are requi
are set out in Appeﬁdix I hereto.

RECOMMENDATION

The Directorsiconsider the Repur
and Amendments to the Bye-laws of th
its shareholders. The Directors recon
ordinary resolutions nos. 5, 6, 7 and th
2006 Annual General Meeting.

rs present in person (or in the case of a Member being a
uthorized representative) or by proxy and representing not
voting rights of all Members having the right to vote at the

rs present in person (or in the case of a Member being a
uthorized representative) or by proxy and holding shares in
a right to vote at the meeting being shares on which an
aid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid
g that right.

roxy for a Member or in the case of a Member being a
esentative shall be deemed to be the same as a demand by a

ECTORS

Company, Ms. Ivy Sau Ching Chan and Mr. Karl Chi Leung
006 Annual General Meeting of the Company and, being
ion. Details of Directors proposed to be re-elected at the
red to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules

chase Mandate, the Issue Mandate (together with its extension)
e Company are all in the best interests of the Company and
nmend that all shareholders should vote in favour of the
e special resolution no. 8 to be proposed at the forthcoming

By Order of the Board
David Pun Chan
Chairman




APPENDIX1 DETAILS OF DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE RE-ELECTED

;‘ AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
!

Deiails of Directors proposed to be re-elected at the Annual General Meeting are provided
|
below.

Ms.\*‘ Ivy Sau Ching Chan, BA, aged 53, is a Non-executive Director of the Company and has
been a Director since 1981. Ms. Chan is also a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan did not hold other
directorshi\ps in listed companies in the last three years. She is a Partner with Messrs Woo, Kwan,
Lee & Lo x“vith over 20 years’'lexperience in the legal field. Ms. Chan is the sister of Mr. David Pun
Chan, Chairman of the Company, daughter of Madam Chan Poon Wai Kuen, a substantial shareholder
of the Corhpzny and cousin of Mr. Poon Chi Hung, Head of US Operations of the Company. She

has an inte‘;rest of 20,132,706 shares of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities

and Futures Ordinance.

Mr. Karl Chi Leung Kwok, BA, MBA, aged 57, is an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Compa}\my and has beenja Director since 1983. Mr. Kwok is also Chairman of the Audit
Committee jand Remuneration{Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He
is Chairmar‘} of Wing On Company International Limited, a listed company. Mr. Kwok has more than
25 years’ nianagement experience in the banking and finance businesses. He is not connected with
any directors, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr.

Kwok has an interest of 221,212 shares of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities a‘pd Futures Ordinance.

|

There is no service contract signed between each of the above Directors and the Company
for service as director. They do not have fixed term of service with the Company and are subject to
retirement By rotation and re—ellection at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws, They receive director's fee as approved from time to time by
shareholders at annual generat meetings of the Company (2005: HK$80,000 per annum for each
director), cher than the director’s fee as mentioned above, they do not receive any Director’s
emolument.iSave as disclosed above, there are no marters that need to be brought to the attention
of the shareholders of the Company in connection with the re-election of the above Directors and
there is no i“nformation that should be disclosed pursuant to Rules 13.51 (2)(h) to (v) of the Listing

Rules. ;‘



APPENDIX II ‘ REPURCHASE MANDATE
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

This explanatdry statement contains all the information required by the Listing Rules on

repurchase of shares:

i
|
|

Share Capital

As at 28th June 2006, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this circular,
the issued share capital of the Company comprised 617,531,425 shares of HK$0.10 each.

Subject to the passing of the ordJinary resolution to approve the Repurchase Mandate and on
the basis that no further shares are fissued or repurchased prior to the 2006 Annual General
Meeting, the Comparhy will be allowedjunder the Repurchase Mandate to repurchase a maximum of
61,753,142 shares, Being 10% of the entire issued share capital of the Company.

i

Shareholders’ Appfroval

All repurchase of shares must|be approved by shareholders in advance by means of an
ordinary resolution, either by way of a general mandate or by specific resolution in relation to

specific transactions.
Reason for the Repurchase

Repurchase jof shares will only be made when the Directors consider that it will benefit the
Company and its Qhareholders. Such repurchase may, depending on market conditions and funding

arrangements at the time, lead to an enhancement of the net asset value and/or earnings per share.

Source of Funds

Repurchasés must be financed out of funds legally available for the purpose in accordance
with the memorandum of association and Bye-laws of the Company and the laws of Bermuda. The
law of Bermuda f)rovide that the amount of capital repaid in connection with a share repurchase
may only be paici out of either capital paid up on the shares to be repurchased, or the profits that
would otherwise jbe available for dividend or distribution or the proceeds of a fresh issue of shares
made for that pu‘rpose. The premiums payable on repurchase must only be paid out of either the
profits that Woula otherwise be available for dividends or our of the share premium or contributed
surplus account ;‘Jof the Company. It is envisaged that any repurchase of shares by the Company

would be financed out of the same jsources of fund as above described.

There might be material adverse impact on the working capital or gearing position of the
Company (as cofmpared with the position disclosed in the audited consolidated accounts contained
in the annual report for the year ended 31st March 2006) in the event that the proposed Repurchase
Mandate were to be exercised in full at any time during the proposed repurchase period. However,
the Directors do not propose to eiriercise the Repurchase Mandate to such extent as would, in the
circumstances, have a material adverse effect on the working capital requirements of the Company
or the gearing levels which in the opinion of the Directors are from time to time appropriate for the

Company.




APPENDIX II REPURCHASE MANDATE
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

Trading Restrictions

A maximum of 10% of the fully paid-up issued shares of a company at the date of the

resolution authorizing the repurchase mandate may be repurchased on market.

Disclosure of Interests

None of the Directors nor, to the best of their knowledge having made all reasonable
enquiries, their associates have any present intention to sell any shares to the Company under the

proposed Repurchase Mandate if such is approved by the shareholders of the Company.

The Company has not been notified by any “connected persons” (as defined in the Listing
Rules) that they have a present intention to sell any shares to the Company, or that they have
undertaken not to do so, in the event that the proposed Repurchase Mandate is approved by the

shareholders of the Company.
Effect of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers Code”)

As at the date of this circular, Madam Chan Poon Wai Kuen together with her parties acting
in concert (i.e. including Mr. David Pun Chan and Ms. Ivy Sau Ching Chan) were interested in
286,520,131 shares, representing approximately 46.40% of the issued share capital of the Company.
In the event that the Directors exercise in full the Repurchase Mandate, their collective shareholdings
would be increased to approximately 51.55%, the resultant increase in voting rights held by Madam
Chan Poon Wai Kuen and parties acting in concert with her will give rise to an obligation to make a
mandatory offer in accordance with Rules 26 and 32 of the Takeovers Code. However, the Directors
have no present intention to exercise the Repurchase Mandate to such extent as would give rise to
such an offer obligation. The Directors do not propose to repurchase shares to such an extent as to

result in less than 25% of the shares in public hands.

The Directors have undertaken to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange™) that, so far as the same may be applicable, they will exercise the Repurchase Mandarte
in accordance with the applicable laws of Bermuda and the Listing Rules.

Repurchase made by the Company

The Company has not purchased any of its shares (whether on the Stock Exchange or

otherwise) in the six months preceding the date of this circular.




APPENDIX II w REPURCHASE MANDATE
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

Share Prices

The highest abd lowest prices at| which the shares of the Company have traded on the Stock

Exchange in the past twelve months were as follows:

| Shares

Highest Lowest

HK$ HKS$

June 2005 $4.300 $4.000
July 2005 $4.850 $4.125
August 2005 $5.100 $4.700
September 2005 $5.100 $4.650
October 2005 $4.750 $3.725
November 2005 $4.150 $3.600
December 2005 $4.575 $3.875
January 2006 $4.975 $4.425
February 2006 $4.750 $4.375
March 2006 $4.600 $4.250
April 2006 | $4.750 $4.325
May 2006 $4.675 $3.900

June 2006 (up to 28th June 2006) $4.025 $3.725




NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

“E1*), TAl CHEUNG HOLDINGS LIMITED

{(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 88)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at
the Chater Room I & II, Function Room Level, The Ritz-Carlton, Hong Kong, 3 Connaught Road,
Central, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 0th September 2006 at 11:00 a.m. for the following purposes:~

1. To receive and consider the Statement of Accounts and the Reports of the Directors
and Auditors for the year ended 31st March 2006.

2. To declare a final dividend,
3, To elect Directors and fix the Directors’ fees.
4, To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration.

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions which

will be proposed as ordinary resolutions:
ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
5. “THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant
Perjod (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to repurchase
shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) or on any other siock exchange on
which the securities of the Company may be listed and recognized by the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange for
this purpose, subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws and the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange or of any other stock exchange as amended from time to time, be

and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved,;

(b)  the aggregate nominal amount of the shares of the Company which the Directors
are authorized to repurchase pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above
during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) shall not exceed 10 per
cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the passing of this Resolution, and the said approval

shall be limited accordingly; and




!

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

()

for the purposes of this Resolution, “Relevant Period” means the period from
|
the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earlier of:

(€Y the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company; or
(1) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting

of the Company is required by the bye-laws of the Company or any
applicable lilw to be held; or

1(iii)  the date on|which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked or
‘ varied by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in

general meeting.”

“THAT:

(a)

(b)

()

i
I

subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant

; Period (as hereinzlfter defined) of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue
and deal with any unissued shares in the capital of the Company and to make

' or grant offers, jagreements and options (including bonds, warrants and

" debentures, notes and any securities which carry rights to subscribe for or are

~ convertible into shares of the Company) which would or might require the

! exercise of such power be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved,

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorize the Directors during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) to make or grant offers, agreements
and options (including bonds, warrants and debentures, notes and any securities
which carry rightT to subscribe for or are convertible into shares of the Company)
which would or might require the exercise of such powers after the end of the

Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally
or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise)
and issued by the Directors pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above,
otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); (ii) an
issue of sharesjas scrip dividends in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company from time to time; or (iii) an issue of shares upon the exercise of
rights of subscription or conversion under the terms of any bonds, warrants,
debenture, notes and any securities which carry rights to subscribe for or are
convertible into shares of the Company, or (iv) an issue of shares under any
option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being adopted for the grant
or issue to the grantees as specified in such scheme or similar arrangement of
shares or rights{to acquire shares of the Company, shall not exceed 20 per cent.
of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of the passing of this Resolution, and the said approval shall be

limited accordingly; and




NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(D

for the purpose of this Resolution, “Relevant Period” means the period from the

passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earlier ofi—
(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company; or

(ii)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting
of the Company is required by the bye-laws of the Company or any
applicable law to be held; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked or
varied by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in

general meeting.

“Right Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed by the Directors
to the holders of shares of the Company on the register of members of the
Company (and, where appropriate to holders of other securities of the Company
entitled to the offer) on a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings
of such shares (or, where appropriate, such other securities) as at that date
(subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to
any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any
recognized regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory outside

Hong Kong applicable to the Company).”

“THAT subject to the passing of Ordinary Resolutions Nos. S and 6 set out in the

-notice convening this meeting, the general mandate granted to the Directors to allot,

issue and deal with any unissued shares and to make or grant offers, agreements and

options which might require the exercise of such powers pursuant to Ordinary

Resolution No. 6 set out in the notice convening this meeting be and is hereby

extended by the addition thereto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal

amount of shares in the capital of the Company repurchased by the Company under

the authority granted pursuant to Ordinary Resolution No. 5 set out in the notice

convening this meeting, provided that such amount of shares shall not exceed 10 per

cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company as

at the date of the passing of the said Resolution.”
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|
As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution which

will be proposed as épecial resolution:

!
|

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

8. “THATfthe existing Bye-faws of the Company be and are hereby amended in the

following manner:
(a)  Bye-law 63

(1 by inserting|the words “voting by way of a poll is required by the rules
of the Designated Stock Exchange or” after the words “a show of hands

unless” in the third sentence of Bye-law 63;

(D by deleting the full stop at the end of Bye-law 63(d) and replacing it

) with a semi-colon and inserting the word “or” after the semi-colon;
' (iii) by insertinT the following new Bye-law 63(e) after Bye-law 63(d):

“(e) if required by the rules of the Designated Stock Exchange, by any
Director or Directors who, individually or collectively, hold proxies
in respect of shares representing five per cent. (5%) or more of

the total voting rights at such meeting.”;
(b) | Bye-law 83(2)

by deleting the|last sentence of By-law 83(2) and replacing thereof by the

following new sentence:

! “Any Director To appointed shall hold office only until the next following
I general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or
until the next féllowing annual general meeting of the Company (in the case of
an addition to|the Board), and shall then be eligible for re-election at the

meeting.”;
(c)  Bye-law 83(4)

by deleting the words “special resolution” in the second line of Bye-law 83(4)

and inserting the words “ordinary resolution” in their place;

— 11 —
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(d  Bye-law 84(2)

by deleting the existing Bye-law 84;&) in its entirety and substituting therefor
1 r

the following new Bye-law:

“(2)  Subject to the manner of retirement by rotation of Directors as from time
to time prescribed under the rules of the Designated Stock Exchange and
subject to the Company's private act which was enacted on 19th June 1990 and
notwithstanding any contractual or other terms on which any Director may be
appointed or engaged, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that (i) save for a Director holding office as Chairman or Managing
Director, every Director (including those appointed for a specific them) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years at an annual
general meeting and (i) no Director holding office as Chairman or Managing
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation or be taken into account in

determining the number of Directors to retire.”.”

By Order of the Board
Ivy Yee Har Tam

Secretary

Hong Kong, 6th july 2006

Nozes:

Any member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to
attend and, on a poll, vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

The form of proxy must be deposited with the Company’s Registrars in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited of 46th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the Meeting.

The Register of Members will be closed from Thursday, 31st August 2006 to Wednesday, 6th September
2006, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order 1o qualify
for the proposed dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Registrars in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limijted,
Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 30th August 2006.

As at the date bereof, the Board comprises Mr. David Pun Chan (Chairman), Mr. William Wai Lim Lam and Mr.
Wing Sau Li as executive directors, Ms. Ivy Sau Ching Chan as non-executive director and Mr. Joseph Wing Siu

Cheung, Mr. Karl Chi Leung Kwok and Mr. Benedict Cho Hung Woo as independent non-executive directors.

— 12 —
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